
 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

Regular Meeting AGENDA South BRANCH 
June 8, 2011 6:30 PM 1901 Russell Street 
   
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704  (510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

The Board of Library Trustees may act on any item on this agenda. 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A. Call to Order 

B. Public Comments (6:30 – 7:00 PM) 
(Proposed 30-minute time limit, with speakers allowed 3 minutes each) 

C. Report from library employees and unions, discussion of staff issues 
Comments / responses to reports and issues addressed in packet. 

D. Report from Board of Library Trustees  
 

II. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Kitchell CEM Quarterly Update – Steve Dewan 

B. Civic Art in West and South Branch Measure FF Projects – Donna Corbeil 
 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Board will consider removal and addition of items to the Consent Calendar prior to voting on the 
Consent Calendar. All items remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved in one motion. 

A. Approve minutes of May 11, 2011 Regular Meeting 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes of the May 11, 2011 regular meeting of the Board of 
Library Trustees. 

B. Incorporate Bay-Friendly Landscaping Guidelines into Library Landscape Maintenance Service 
Agreements 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to incorporate 
Bay-Friendly Landscaping Maintenance Guidelines into future contract. 

C. Recommendation to the City Council on the FY2012 Library Tax Rate 
Recommendation:  Adopt a resolution to rescind BOLT R11-039 and to recommend that the 
Berkeley City Council set the FY 2012 tax rate for the Library Services Tax at $0.1655 (16.55 cents) 
per square foot for dwelling units and $0.2503 (25.03 cents) per square foot for industrial, 
commercial, and institutional buildings, based on the per capita personal income growth factor of 
2.81% for the state of California.   

D. Amend FY 2012 and 2013 Berkeley Public Library Biennial Budget   
Recommendation:  Adopt a resolution to amend the FY 2012 and 2013 Proposed Biennial Budget 
as presented to reflect increased tax ravenues. 
 

IV. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. Update on the Branch Bond Program  
Discussion of staff report on status of implementation of the Measure FF branch improvement 
program, to include update on Request for Proposals, schedule, and budget. 

efranklin
Text Box
Click on dashed links to view the item documents.



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY   BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA  
June 8, 2011  Page 2 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704  (510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

B. June 2011 Monthly Report from Library Director  
i. Library Development 

ii. Professional Activities 
iii. Programs, Services and Collections 
iv. Personnel 

C. Library events: Calendar of events and press releases for various Library programs are posted at 
http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

 

V. AGENDA BUILDING 

The next meeting will be a Regular Meeting held at 6:30 PM on Wednesday, July 13, 2011 at the South Branch 
Library, 1901 Russell Street, Berkeley. 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
Written materials may be viewed in advance of the meeting at the Central Library Reference Desk (2090 Kittredge Street), or any of the 
branches, during regular library hours. 

Wheelchair accessible. To request a sign language interpreter, real-time captioning, materials in large 
print or Braille, or other accommodations for this event, please call (510) 981-6107 (voice) or (510) 548-
1240 (TTY); at least three working days will help ensure availability.    

Please refrain from wearing scented products to public programs. 

I hereby certify that the agenda for this regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley was posted in the display 
cases located at 2134 Martin Luther King, Jr. Way and in front of the Central Public Library at 2090 Kittredge Street, as well as on the 
Berkeley Public Library’s website on June 1, 2011. 

 

 
 //s// ____________________________________________________________ 
 Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

For further information, please call (510) 981-6195. 

COMMUNICATIONS 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic records, 
which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are 
not required, but if included in any communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become part of the public record. If 
you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal 
Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee. If you do not want your contact information 
included in the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant 
board, commission or committee for further information. 
 

1.  



 

   
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 
 PRESENTATION CALENDAR 
 June 08, 2011 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  
SUBJECT: CIVIC ART IN WEST AND SOUTH BRANCH MEASURE FF PROJECTS 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The successful placement of public art in the four branch libraries as part of the Measure FF funded 
renovations is a goal of both the Board of Library Trustee and the Berkeley Civic Arts Commission (CAC). 
In July 2010, the Civic Arts Commission and the Library Board discussed a process for the inclusion of art 
in the library building projects at their respective meetings. The result was an agreement to collaborate 
on the selection and commissioning of art, such that the expertise and knowledge of the Civic Arts 
Commissioners, the Civic Arts Coordinator, library representatives, the community and an outside 
consultant, would be engaged to ensure the best outcome. Since this time the selection of the art 
projects for North and Claremont libraries has been completed, contracts with the artists for the 
selected artwork executed and the projects have been included into the final drawings for coordination 
with the completion of construction.  
 
On May 17, 2011, the City Council approved the Use Permit for the construction of new South and West 
branch libraries. The projects are in the construction document phase of planning. This is an appropriate 
time in the schedule to commence with the selection process to facilitate the development of 
construction documents that incorporate structural or functional art pieces so that the art is integrated 
appropriately into the buildings.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Over a period of several months in the fall of 2009 the board discussed the addition of public art in the 
Measure FF funded branch projects. As a result, staff contacted the City’s Civic Arts Office to develop a 
process to move forward.  For Measure FF, the Branch Renovation Program, outside bond council has 
advised that the City cannot use bond proceeds for furnishings or fixtures under State law, but instead 
the bond funds can only be used if the art can be considered permanently attached to the structure and 
treated as real property.  As Measure FF funds relate to the city’s civic art ordinance, Resolution 60,048, 
it is not a given that the branch renovations would be designated as eligible capital projects. In March 
2010, it was clarified that public art could be incorporated into the Measure FF projects and the options 
for doing so. Consequently, the Civic Arts Commission discussed and concurred that an inclusive process 
engaging representatives from the two commissions, the design team, the public and staff was the best 
approach. The earlier process included representatives from the Landmarks Preservation Commission, 

II Presentations, Item B 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT  
Civic Art In Measure FF Projects  Page 2 

   
due to the historic nature of those buildings.  In addition, the Library board approved a contract with 
David Snippen, in an amount not to exceed $10,000 for consultant services related to the management 
of the process required to complete these two projects over the next few years.  The call for artists was 
opened to artists living or working in Alameda and Contra Costa counties. The selection process was 
initiated and conducted as presented throughout the Fall, concluding in December 2010.   
 
The final artist and project for each branch was approved by the Civic Arts Commission, the Board of 
Library Trustees and the Landmarks Preservation Commission. On January 12, 2010 BOLT approved a 
resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to execute a contract and any amendments with 
Marion Coleman for North Branch and Eric Powell for Claremont Branch for the provision of art 
commissioning, production and services related to design and installation of selected art for a term of 18 
months in an amount not to exceed $38,000 for the North project and $29,000 for the Claremont 
branch for the period from January 26, 2011 through July 30, 2012. The North and Claremont projects 
are now under construction and the commissioned art will be installed prior to reopening.  
  
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECT 
 
Staff recommends a process similar in its cooperative nature be accepted for the South and West 
projects. The Civic Arts Commission has begun to discuss the process for the selection of art projects for 
the next two library projects as well, with staffs meeting to discuss a process.   
 
Staff recommends the board: 
 

1. Review recommended process for moving forward as outlined (Attachment 1), including 
participation, decision-making and reporting and to engage the Bay Area Visual Artists network 
as the preferred method to solicit artists.  

2. Designate one or two trustee(s) to represent the board on each panel related to the South or 
West project, though the same 2 trustees could represent the board on both if preferred. An 
alternate may also be selected if desired.  

3. Agree to the continued engagement of the consultant, David Snippen at a cost not to exceed 
$3,000 per project for the next two projects, to provide continuity and expertise through 
selection, commissioning and construction. 

4. Discuss the inclusion of a theme for the art selection process, so that pieces considered reflect 
the historical and cultural history and evolution of the neighborhood and the history of the 
library as elements.  

 
Staff will report to BOLT regularly on progress, including artist selection and timeline as the process 
moves forward. A report to Council on the completion of the selection process for North and Claremont 
was included on the information calendar of the Regular meeting of May 17, 2011: 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/2011-05-
17_Item_31_Update_on_Measure_FF_Civic_Art_Projects.pdf 
 
We will continue to work closely with representatives from the stakeholders involved, including the Civic 
Arts Commission, the community, and the Civic Arts Coordinator. Including opportunities for public 
involvement and support  is vital to the success of the Library civic art projects and will be a 
consideration throughout all phases of the planning. For the first two projects, community 
representatives were including on the panel and a public display of the finalist models in the branches to 
solicit comments was undertaken, these opportunities for community involvement were well received.  
The latter may be done again and/or an electronic method of reviewing the finalist used.  



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT  
Civic Art In Measure FF Projects  Page 3 

   
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1.  Summary of Process and Overview 
 



 

 



Public Art West & South Branch 6 2011 
 

DRAFT 
 

Major Tasks: 
 
Under the direction of the Civic Arts Coordinator and the Director of Library Services a 
public art process will commence to include civic art projects in the West Branch Library 
and the South Branch Library as part of Measure FF, to include: 
 
General Tasks 
 
Coordinate solicitation and selection of artists / art piece 
 
Reporting as needed to BOLT, CAC and Council 
 
Presentation of recommendations to CAC and BOLT for approval 
 
Commissioning - schedule and coordinate design, fabrication, delivery and installation of 
artwork at library 
 
Budget and contract management  
 
Assumptions 
 
This will be a collaborative process between the community, the Civic Arts program and 
the Library, engaging both CAC and BOLT, to include a public art component in the 
remaining two Measure FF bond program funded projects. 
 
Project Description 
 
The theme of the project is to create a permanent record or interpretive program on the 
development of the West or South Berkeley Branch library. The West and South Branch 
Libraries are each one of four branches and a Central library that makes up the city’s 
library system. The history of public library development in Berkeley should be 
incorporated into the thematic elements of the art. The use of historic photographs, 
documents, maps and building plans important to or reflecting the historical and cultural 
history and evolution of the neighborhood and the history of the library may be included 
as elements. For example, the themed art installation could incorporate facsimiles of 
original documents and / or photographs and the artist could reinterpret them to create a 
contextual piece. 
 
 
Selection panels 
 
Each panel will be convened by the Civic Arts Coordinator to review the call for artists, 
finalize possible locations within building project design for placement of art as 
recommended by the library design team. The Civic Arts Coordinator will convene the 
groups as needed to complete the selection process and will report to CAC needed. 
 
Convene 2 distinct selection panels, one for each project, members consisting of: 

Attachment 1 



 
2 Civic Arts Commissioners 
2 BOLT Trustees 
Project Architect 
Library Branch Head 
2 community representatives (local artist, young person, TBD) 
 
Non-voting members: Civic Arts Coordinator, Representative from Library Administration 
& Consultant 
 
Budget: 
 
As the Library has adequate staff and recent experience in this area, these city staff will 
manage FF budget and contracts related to art expenditures.  
 
Funding:  

 West $73,500 maximum with 1% for art = $49,000 (.5%= $24,500 for all 
associated fees and expenses, including artist models, advertising, mailings, 
opening event and $700 for Bay Van) 

 South $64,500 maximum with 1% for art $43,000 (.5 $21,500 for all associated 
fees and expenses, including artist models, advertising, mailings, opening event 
and $700 for Bay Van) 

 
Library will continue contract with consultant previously selected to assist with 
coordination during selection, commissioning and installation phases in an amount not to 
exceed $3,000 per project. This will provide continuity in knowledge and experience 
throughout selection, design and installation phases, including assistance with 
scheduling, coordination of shop drawings with architect, fabrication and supplements 
the work of staff with added expertise in the areas of construction and design. 
 
Contract with BayVAN, an Oakland based firm that assist with the coordination of artist 
selection with online tools. Bay Area Visual Artists will be engaged, see: 
http://bayvan.org/ [process used by City for 510 Arts competition] in an amount 
estimated at $700 per project. 
 
 
 



MINUTES 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 11, 2011, 6:30 P.M. 

 
CENTRAL LIBRARY – 2090 KITTREDGE STREET 

 
Board of Library Trustees: 

Chair Susan Kupfer Winston Burton 
Vice Chair Darryl Moore Abigail Franklin 
 Carolyn Henry-Golphin 
 
I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A copy of the agenda packet and a digital recording of the meeting is accessible at 
http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/bolt/bolt.php 
 

A. Call to Order: 6:30 p.m. 

Present: Trustees Franklin, Trustee Henry-Golphin, Kupfer and Moore. 
Absent:  Trustee Burton. 
Also Present: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services; Douglas Smith; Deputy Director; 
Dennis Dang, Library Admin Manager; Suzanne Olawski, Neighborhood Services Manager; 
Jenifer Shurson, Human Resources Analyst; Shani Leonards, Supervising Librarian; Dayna Holz, 
Librarian I; Andrea Mullarkey, Librarian II, Lisa Hesselgesser, Library Specialist II; Debbie 
Carton, Librarian II; Patricia Hoshi-Nagamoto, Library Specialist II; Linda Sakamoto-Jahnke, 
Library Literacy Coordinator; Joy Shioshita, Interim Children’s Manager, Eve Franklin, 
Administrative Secretary. 
 
Public Comments: 
Jane Scantlebury, retired Librarian – Expressed concerns about changes to management 
structure in regard to Art & Music and Reference. 

Peter Warfield, Library Users Associations – Expressed concerns about summarized public 
comments in the April 13, 2011 minutes.  Expressed concerns about  May 11, 2011 agenda 
items: 1) Innovative Interfaces. 2) Branch Improvement Project Report – lack of detail. 3) 
Spoke out against the reduction in patron noticing.  

Patricia Hoshi-Nagamoto – Spoke in favor of building a new South Branch Library. 

David Snyder, Berkeley Public Library Foundation – Encouraged the Board and public to attend 
the May 17, 2011 City Council Meeting public hearings for South and West Branches. 

B. Report from library employees and unions, discussion of staff issues: 

Brian Lee, SEIU Local 1021 Field Representative – Spoke regarding  Personnel Board’s decision 
to not approve revisions to Library Aide and Library Assistant classifications; and the 
establishment of the Library Page classification. Stated what was presented to the Personnel 
Board was not what was agreed to, the dispute is over establishing a 6 month pilot program 
and to limit Library Page classification to intermittent employees. 

III Consent, Item A



Page 2 05/11/2011 MINUTES BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
 

C. Report from Board of Library Trustees: 

Chair Kupfer welcomed incoming Trustee Julie Holcomb. 

Outgoing Trustee Henry-Golphin thanked everyone and stated these are challenging times 
and it’s rewarding to see the progress made. 

Outgoing Trustee/Chair Kupfer – It’s a great community, city , staff and  the people who come 
to meetings. Much progress has been made. 

Trustee Moore – Thank you to the individuals in our community who step up to the plate to 
volunteer time and skills. Thank you to Trustees Kupfer and Henry-Golphin  for hard work and 
commitment.   

II. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Berkeley READS Adult Literacy Program – Linda Sakamoto-Jahnke 

From: Library Literacy Coordinator 
Contact: Linda Sakamoto-Jahnke 
Action: Presentation made and discussion held. Handouts provided (attachment 1.)  

III. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Action: M/S/C (Trustee Henry-Golphin / Trustee Franklin) to adopt Resolution# R11-033 to 
adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion as presented. 
Vote: Ayes: Trustees Franklin, Henry-Golphin, Kupfer and Moore.  Noes: None.   Absent: Trustee 
Burton.  Abstentions: None. 

A. Approve minutes of April 13, 2011 Regular Meeting 

From: Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes of the April 13, 2011 regular meeting of the Board of 
Library Trustees. 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: Adopted Resolution# R11-034 to approve minutes as presented. 

B. Bay-Friendly Landscaping Grant    

From: Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution accepting and appropriating Stopwaste.org managed Bay-
Friendly grant funds for the Claremont Branch Improvement Project in an amount not to exceed 
$15,000. 
Financial Implications: see report. 
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: Adopted Resolution # R11-035. 



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 05/11/2011 MINUTES  Page 3 

C. Recommendation to City Council for trustee appointments effective May 14, 2011 through 
May 14, 2015 (corrected dates) 

From: Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to recommend candidates to the City Council for 
appointment of four-year term. 
Financial Implications: none. 
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: Adopted Resolution # R11-036. 

D. Innovative Interfaces, Inc. Renew Contract for Hardware and Software Maintenance Services 

From: Library Systems Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to authorize the Director of Library Services to renew the 
existing agreement with Innovative Interfaces, Inc. for the provision of hardware and software 
maintenance services for the Library’s circulation system for the period of July 1, 2011 through 
June 30, 2012 in a not to exceed amount of $195,000, for a total contract amount not to exceed 
$425,000 for fiscal years 2011 and 2012. 
Financial Implications: see report. 
Contact: Alicia Abramson, Library Systems Manager 
Action: Adopted Resolution # R11-037. 

IV. ACTION CALENDAR 

A. Proposed FY 2012 and 2013 Berkeley Public Library Biennial Budget   

From: Administrative  Services Manager  
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution approving the FY 2012 and 2013 Proposed Biennial 
Budget as presented. Handout provided (Attachment 2) 
Financial Implications: see report. 
Contact: Dennis Dang, Administrative Services Manager 
Action: M/S/C (Moore/Franklin) to adopt Resolution# R11-038 to adopt a resolution to approve 
the FY 2012 and 2013 Proposed Biennial Budget as presented. 
Vote: Ayes: Trustees Franklin, Henry-Golphin, Kupfer and Moore.  Noes: None.   Absent: Trustee 
Burton.  Abstentions: None. 

B. Recommendation to the City Council on the FY2012 Library Tax Rate 

From: Director of Library Services  
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to recommend that the Berkeley City Council set the FY 
2012 tax rate for the Library Services Tax at $0.1650 (16.50 cents) per square foot for dwelling 
units and $0.2496 (24.96 cents) per square foot for industrial, commercial, and institutional 
buildings, based on the per capita personal income growth factor of 2.51% for the state of 
California.   
Financial Implications: see report. 
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: M/S/C (Moore/Franklin) to adopt Resolution# R11-039 to recommend that the Berkeley 
City Council set the FY 2012 tax rate for the Library Services Tax at $0.1650 (16.50 cents) per 
square foot for dwelling units and $0.2496 (24.96 cents) per square foot for industrial, 
commercial, and institutional buildings, based on the per capita personal income growth factor 
of 2.51% for the state of California.   



Page 4 05/11/2011 MINUTES BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
 

Vote: Ayes: Trustees Franklin, Henry-Golphin, Kupfer and Moore.  Noes: None.   Absent: Trustee 
Burton.  Abstentions: None. 

C. Nomination and selection of Chair and Vice Chair of the Board of Library Trustees 

From: Director of Library Services  
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to select one Trustee to service as chair and a second 
Trustee to serve as vice chair, for the term commencing May 12, 2011 through November 2011.   
Financial Implications: none. 
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: M/S/C to adopt Resolution # R11-040 in two motions: (Kupfer/Golphin) to select Trustee 
Moore to service as chair, (Moore/Franklin) to select Trustee Burton to serve as vice chair, for the 
term commencing May 12, 2011 through November 2011. 
Vote: Ayes: Trustees Franklin, Henry-Golphin, Kupfer and Moore.  Noes: None.   Absent: Trustee 
Burton.  Abstentions: None. 

V. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. Update on the Branch Bond Program  

From: Director of Library Services 
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: Received. 

B. May 2011 Monthly Report from Library Director  

From: Director of Library Services  
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: Received. 

C. FY 2011 – 3rd Quarter Update  

From: Administrative Services Manager   
Contact: Dennis Dang, Administrative Services Manager 
Action: Received. 

D. Discussion of Library Work Plan for FY2012 and FY2013  

From: Director of Library Services  
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: Received. 

E. Library events: Calendar of events and press releases for various Library programs are posted at 
http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org  

From: Director of Library Services  
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: Received. 

VI. AGENDA BUILDING 



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 05/11/2011 MINUTES  Page 5 

The next meeting will be a Regular Meeting held at 6:30 PM on Wednesday, June 8, 2011 at the 
South Branch Library, 1901 Russell Street, Berkeley. 

• Kitchell CEM quarterly update 
• Work Plan 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 
1. Jenny Wenk – South and West Lawsuit 
2. Al Kitt - Ergonomics 
 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS  
None. 
 



 



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 1



Li
b

ra
ry

 T
a

x 
Fu

nd
 (

30
1)

 
FY

11
 –

 F
Y

13
 

F
Y

1
1

 

P
ro

je
c

te
d

 

F
Y

1
2

 

U
n

c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 

F
Y

1
2

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

F
Y

1
3

 

U
n

c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 

F
Y

1
3

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

$
1

4
,3

4
0

,2
7

5
 

$
1

4
,6

6
7

,4
2

2
 

$
1

4
,6

6
7

,4
2

2
 

$
1

4
,8

8
3

,1
5

1
 

$
1

4
,8

8
3

,1
5

1
 

E
x

p
e

n
s

e
s

 
$

1
4

,6
9

0
,6

1
8

 
$

1
5

,5
4

9
,0

3
5

 
$

1
4

,9
2

6
,4

9
3

 
$

1
5

,6
6

9
,8

2
8

 
$

1
5

,1
4

7
,1

0
9

 

  
 P

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 
$

1
1

,5
3

3
,4

4
9

 
$

1
2

,5
5

1
,1

8
9

 
$

1
1

,9
8

2
,6

0
9

 
$

1
2

,8
1

0
,6

4
5

 
$

1
2

,2
3

0
,7

7
4

 

  
 N

o
n

p
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 

$
3

,1
5

7
,1

6
9

 
$

2
,9

9
7

,8
4

6
 

$
2

,9
4

3
,8

8
4

 
$

2
,8

5
9

,1
8

3
 

$
2

,9
1

6
,3

3
5

 

S
u

rp
lu

s
/ 

S
h

o
rt

fa
ll
 

($
3

5
0

,3
4

3
) 

($
8

8
1

,6
1

3
) 

($
2

5
9

,0
7

1
) 

($
7

8
6

,6
7

7
) 

($
2

6
3

,9
5

8
) 

In
 t

h
e

 B
a

n
k

 
$

1
,4

6
1

,8
8

4
 

$
1

,1
1

1
,5

4
0

 
$

1
,1

1
1

,5
4

0
 

$
2

2
9

,9
2

7
 

$
8

5
2

,4
7

0
 

E
n

d
in

g
 

$
1

,1
1

1
,5

4
0

 
$

2
2

9
,9

2
7

 
$

8
5

2
,4

7
0

 
($

5
5

6
,7

5
0

) 
$

5
8

8
,5

1
2

 

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 2



 



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 June 8, 2011 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 
SUBJECT: INCORPORATE BAY-FRIENDLY LANDSCAPING GUIDELINES INTO LIBRARY LANDSCAPE 

MAINTENANCE SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

   
RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to incorporate Bay-Friendly Landscaping 
Maintenance Guidelines into the scope of services of any new vendor contract(s) for landscape 
maintenance services. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 

None. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

In May 2011 the Board approved by Resolution R11-035 the acceptance and appropriation of Bay-
Friendly grant funds originating from the Claremont Branch improvement project.  The remaining three 
projects will also be eligible to apply for Bay-Friendly grant funds and certification.  One way to achieve 
points – and subsequently receive grant award funding – on the Bay Friendly Landscaping GreenPoint 
checklist that is inclusive to the grant application (Claremont Branch Scorecard – Attachment 2), is to 
“Create a Bay-Friendly maintenance task force: Provide a detailed Bay-Friendly maintenance task list 
and/or use the BF Model Maintenance specifications as an official reference document in the landscape 
maintenance contract and/or with on-site landscape staff.”  Because the Library contracts with a third 
party for landscaping services these specifications could be included in the scope of any future contract.  
While these points are not required to achieve certification, the practices recommended are consistent 
with city-wide goals related to sustainability and integrate with the landscape designs planned for each 
site.  Project features that are characteristic of the whole-systems approach of Bay-Friendly landscaping 
are employed such as permeable pavers, reuse of on-site recycled materials, replacement of small lawns 
with drought-tolerant natives, and bio-filtration planters, among many others.  By committing to 
maintain Library managed landscapes to no less than the minimum standard as determined by the Bay-
Friendly landscape guidelines, the intent of the city’s ordinance will be met.   

BACKGROUND 

The City Council approved on June 23, 2009, Resolution No. 64,750-N.S. establishing a Bay-Friendly 
landscaping Policy for city projects: 

III Consent, Item B



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Bay-Friendly landscape maintenance  Page 2 

http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_City_Council/2009/06Jun/2009-06-
23_Item_21_Establishing_a_Bay-Friendly_Landscaping_Policy_for_City_Projects.pdf. 

The Measure FF branch library projects are subject to the requirements of this ordinance to the extent a 
project meets the criteria to “assess compliance with BFL for every City project involving greater than 
10,000 square feet of landscaping.”  Nonetheless, while the Claremont project is below the required 
square footage threshold the Library has elected that this project adhere to Bay-Friendly practices.  

Library staff has met with representatives from StopWaste.Org (the Alameda County Waste 
Management Authority) and staff from the City’s Office of Energy & Sustainability Development and its 
Sustainability Coordinator, as well as staff of the Planning Department to review the City’s Green 
Building policies (City Council Resolution No. 62,284-N.S.).  Additionally, over the years the Library has 
adopted other sustainability related practices initiated by the City principally concerning energy savings, 
pest management, and general whole-system environmental practices.  These actions are included 
among our policies, and compliance by vendors is required accordingly. 

The Library periodically opens an RFP for landscape maintenance services for all five facilities.  And, it is 
expected that once the current contract expires, staff will, if approved by the Board include compliance 
with BF Guidelines.  These can be found on the BF website using the following link: 
http://stopwaste.org/home/index.asp?page=188.  We do not expect this to be an onerous requirement 
or result in an increase in contract price as most professional landscapers in the Bay Area are 
knowledgeable of these guidelines and adhere to all or the majority of the provisions.  

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 

By adopting the Bay-Friendly landscape maintenance guidelines as part of the Library’s landscaping 
maintenance contract the Library will be in an enhanced position to apply for Bay Friendly grant 
opportunities, be in conformance with policies adopted by the City Council, be consistent in practices 
utilized by other City agencies, such as the Parks Department, and will be honoring the intent and 
wishes of the public in pursuing sustainable and green practices and policies.  

Attachments 
1. Resolution 
2. Bay-Friendly Scorecard – Claremont Bid Set Review  
 
 



 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO.: R11-0## 
 

INCORPORATE BAY-FRIENDLY LANDSCAPING GUIDELINES INTO LIBRARY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 
SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, on November 18, 2003 the City Council of the City of Berkeley approved Resolution No. 
62,284-N.S. adopting policies and actions requiring the use of the United States Green Building Council’s 
LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) green building rating system standards for city 
owned and operated projects; and 

WHEREAS, on June 23, 2009 the City Council of the City of Berkeley approved Resolution No. 64,750-N.S. 
establishing a Bay-Friendly landscaping policy for City projects; and 

WHEREAS, over the years the Library has adhered to City adopted initiatives concerning energy savings, 
pest management, and general whole-system environmental practices and the Library has imposed 
compliance upon its vendors accordingly; and  

WHEREAS, the Library expects to open an RFP for landscape maintenance services for all five Berkeley 
Public Library facilities prior to the expiration of the current contract in January 2012; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley hereby 
authorizes the Director of Library Services to incorporate Bay-Friendly Landscaping Maintenance 
Guidelines into the scope of services of any new vendor contract(s) for landscape maintenance services. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on June 8, 
2011 by the following vote: 

 
AYES: NOES: ABSENT: ABSTENTIONS:   
            
    Darryl Moore, Chairperson 
 
            
    Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
    Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 
 
 

Attachment 1



 

 
 



B
a

y
-F

ri
e

n
d

ly
 S

c
o

re
c

a
rd

 f
o

r 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
&

 C
iv

ic
 L

a
n

d
s

c
a

p
e

s 10
25

6
18

18
12

19

25
41

18
45

23
36

29
10

9
15

16
12

27
5

24
10

 Points Achieved

 Landscape Locally

 Less to Landfill

 Nurture the Soil

 Conserve Water

 Conserve Energy

 Water and Air Qualit

 Create Wildlife Habi

Co
m

m
en

ts

5
5

Go
od

0
3

Be
rke

ley
 do

es
 no

t d
es

ign
ate

 U
GB

's

0
3

0
5

N/
A

0
1

Ar
ea

s t
oo

 sm
all

1
1

Go
od

. S
pe

cs
 02

02
0 C

lea
rin

g a
nd

 D
em

o, 
02

95
0 P

lan
tin

g, 
01

50
5 W

as
te 

Mn
gt.

 In
clu

de
 

no
te 

on
 A

 1.
00

 D
em

o S
ite

 P
lan

 to
 be

 su
re

. 

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
2

Go
od

-  
1 T

&R
 L2

.1 
an

d L
1.0

, B
uil

din
g n

ee
ds

 ce
ntr

al 
sto

ra
ge

- d
o n

ot 
se

e o
n A

.03

0
1

1
1

NA
0

1
1

1
NA

1
1

L3
.2 

Go
od

- la
rg

e n
ati

ve
 sh

ru
bs

/ tr
ee

s

0
2

10
/26

 pr
es

er
ve

d=
 38

%

0
2

NA

A.
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

NI
NG

c. 
Th

e s
ite

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
re

su
lts

 in
 th

e c
lea

n u
p o

f a
 co

nta
mi

na
ted

 si
te 

(i.e
. B

ro
wn

fie
ld)

 or
 is

 in
 a 

de
sig

na
ted

 
re

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
ar

ea

2. 
 C

on
sid

er
 th

e p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 fi
re

a. 
Fo

r s
ite

s a
dja

ce
nt 

to 
fire

 se
ns

itiv
e o

pe
n s

pa
ce

 or
 w

ild
 la

nd
s o

nly
: S

ub
mi

t a
 F

ire
 M

itig
ati

on
 P

lan
 

Cl
ar

em
on

t B
id

 S
et

 R
ev

iew

Po
ss

ibl
e P

oin
ts

1. 
 S

ele
ct

 an
d 

ev
alu

at
e t

he
 si

te
 ca

re
fu

lly
a. 

Su
bm

it t
he

 co
mp

let
ed

 B
ay

-F
rie

nd
ly 

Si
te 

An
aly

sis
 fo

rm
 be

for
e 1

00
%

 de
sig

n d
ev

elo
pm

en
t d

oc
um

en
ts

b. 
Th

e s
ite

 is
 lo

ca
ted

 w
ith

in 
an

 ur
ba

n g
ro

wt
h b

ou
nd

ar
y a

nd
 av

oid
s e

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
ly 

se
ns

itiv
e s

ite
s

3. 
Ke

ep
 p

lan
t d

eb
ris

 o
n 

sit
e

a. 
Pr

od
uc

e m
ulc

h f
ro

m 
pla

nt 
de

br
is

i. D
es

ign
 do

cu
me

nts
 sp

ec
ify

 ar
ea

s u
nd

er
 tr

ee
 &

 sh
ru

b c
an

op
ies

 an
d a

t le
as

t 1
0 f

ee
t a

wa
y f

ro
m 

ha
rd

 su
rfa

ce
s 

an
d s

tor
m 

dr
ain

s, 
to 

be
 us

ed
 as

 a 
lea

f r
ep

os
ito

ry 
for

 m
ulc

h 
ii. 

Co
ns

tru
cti

on
 do

cu
me

nts
 sp

ec
ify

 th
at 

of 
the

 tr
ee

s i
de

nti
fie

d f
or

 re
mo

va
l, s

om
e a

re
 ch

ipp
ed

 fo
r u

se
 as

 m
ulc

h 
on

sit
e

b. 
Pr

od
uc

e c
om

po
st 

fro
m 

pla
nt 

de
br

is
i. A

 si
te 

for
 co

mp
os

tin
g i

s i
nc

lud
ed

 in
 la

nd
sc

ap
e p

lan
s. 

Sy
ste

ms
 fo

r c
om

po
sti

ng
 up

 to
 an

d i
nc

lud
ing

 3 
cu

bic
 

ya
rd

s a
t o

ne
 tim

e
ii. 

Sy
ste

ms
 fo

r c
om

po
sti

ng
 m

or
e t

ha
n 3

 an
d u

p t
o 1

0 y
ar

ds
 at

 on
e t

im
e  

(to
tal

 2 
po

int
s)

iii.
 S

ys
tem

s 1
0 c

ub
ic 

ya
rd

s o
r la

rg
er

  (
tot

al 
3 p

oin
ts)

4. 
Re

du
ce

 an
d 

re
cy

cle
 w

as
te

a. 
An

 ea
sil

y a
cc

es
sib

le 
ar

ea
 is

 de
dic

ate
d t

o t
he

 co
lle

cti
on

 an
d s

tor
ag

e o
f m

ate
ria

ls 
for

 re
cy

cli
ng

5. 
 M

in
im

ize
 si

te
 d

ist
ur

ba
nc

e 
a. 

On
 G

re
en

fie
ld 

sit
es

, li
mi

t s
ite

 di
stu

rb
an

ce
 to

 pr
ote

ct 
top

og
ra

ph
y, 

ve
ge

tat
ion

 an
d h

yd
ro

log
y (

tot
al 

3 p
oin

ts)
b. 

 O
n p

re
vio

us
ly 

de
ve

lop
ed

 si
tes

, r
es

tor
e v

eg
eta

tio
n a

nd
 hy

dr
olo

gy
 (t

ota
l 3

 po
int

s)
    

   6
. P

ro
vid

e w
at

er
 an

d/
or

 sh
elt

er
 fo

r w
ild

lif
e s

uc
h 

as
 b

ird
ho

us
e, 

ba
th

ho
us

es
, b

ou
ld

er
s, 

lo
gs

, w
oo

d 
pi

les
, 

lar
ge

 n
at

ive
 sh

ru
bs

 o
r t

re
es

7. 
 C

on
se

rv
e o

r r
es

to
re

 n
at

ur
al 

ar
ea

s &
 w

ild
lif

e c
or

rid
or

s
a. 

Th
e l

an
ds

ca
pe

 is
 de

sig
ne

d t
o p

re
se

rve
 80

%
 of

 ex
ist

ing
 m

atu
re

 he
alt

hy
 tr

ee
s a

nd
 pe

na
ltie

s f
or

 de
str

uc
tio

n o
f 

pr
ote

cte
d t

re
es

 ar
e i

nc
lud

ed
 in

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
 co

ntr
ac

t
b. 

Th
e l

an
ds

ca
pe

 is
 de

sig
ne

d t
o i

nc
re

as
e o

pe
n s

pa
ce

 co
mp

ar
ed

 to
 its

 pr
ev

iou
s u

se
 an

d/o
r t

o c
on

ne
ct 

it t
o o

the
r 

op
en

 sp
ac

e o
r w

ild
life

 co
rri

do
rs

    
    

    
    

    
    

  T
his

 sc
or

ec
ar

d t
ra

ck
s B

ay
-F

rie
nd

ly 
fea

tur
es

 in
co

rp
or

ate
d i

nto
 th

e d
es

ign
 an

d c
on

str
uc

ton
 

    
    

    
    

    
    

  o
f n

ew
 la

nd
sc

ap
es

.  T
he

 re
co

mm
en

de
d m

ini
mu

m 
re

qu
ire

me
nts

 fo
r a

 B
ay

-F
rie

nd
ly 

    
    

    
    

    
    

  L
an

ds
ca

pe
 ar

e: 
ea

rn
 a 

tot
al 

of 
60

 po
int

s o
r m

or
e a

nd
 co

mp
let

e t
he

 9 
re

qu
ire

d p
ra

cti
ce

s  
    

    
    

    
    

    
  in

dic
ate

d b
y t

he
 re

d "
R"

 in
 th

e c
olu

mn
s l

ab
ele

d "
Po

ss
ibl

e P
oin

ts"
.

Da
te:

 4-
22

-1
1

Cu
rre

nt 
Po

int
 T

ota
l:

P
ri

n
t 

W
it

h
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
ri

n
t 

W
it

h
o

u
t 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
ay

 F
rie

nd
ly

 S
co

re
ca

rd
C

iv
ic

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
s

20
08

 E
di

tio
n

P
ag

e 
1 

of
  8

 

Attachment 2



 Points Achieved

 Landscape Locally

 Less to Landfill

 Nurture the Soil

 Conserve Water

 Conserve Energy

 Water and Air Qualit

 Create Wildlife Habi

Co
m

m
en

ts
Cl

ar
em

on
t B

id
 S

et
 R

ev
iew

0
2

NA

7 1
1

2
2

2
2

Pe
rm

ea
ble

 pa
ve

rs 
ye

s, 
dg

 ye
s, 

co
nc

re
te 

pa
vin

g n
o. 

94
%

 of
 ne

w 
pa

vin
g

2
2

Al
l s

tor
m 

dr
ain

 co
nn

ec
tio

ns
 ar

e i
n p

er
me

ab
le 

pa
vin

g, 
pla

nti
ng

 an
d i

nfi
ltra

tio
n a

re
as

. 

0
2

N/
A

2
2

Go
od

 P
1.1

 an
d C

1-
C2

0
2

1
1

C3
- F

low
 th

ro
ug

h p
lan

ter
s a

re
 fla

t w
ith

 sp
las

h b
loc

ks
/ r

oc
ks

 at
 do

wn
sp

ou
ts.

 
1

1
Go

od
1

1
Go

od
 P

1.1
12 3

2
1

 02
92

0-
 go

od

2
2

 02
92

0 G
oo

d

2
2

Tr
ee

 pr
ote

cti
on

 fe
nc

ing
- g

oo
d L

1.0
 an

d L
5.1

0
1

Co
nfi

rm
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

 in
sta

lla
tio

n d
ate

s. 
02

92
0 p

lan
tin

g s
ha

ll n
ot 

oc
cu

r w
he

n s
oil

 is
 

1
1

1
1

12
" 0

29
20

- G
oo

d

C.
 E

AR
TH

W
OR

K 
AN

D 
SO

IL
 H

EA
LT

H

B.
 S

TO
RM

W
AT

ER
 A

ND
 S

IT
E 

DR
AI

NA
GE

b. 
Inc

or
po

ra
te 

lan
ds

ca
pe

 m
ea

su
re

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 ve
ge

tat
ed

 sw
ale

s, 
inf

iltr
ati

on
 pl

an
ter

s, 
de

ten
tio

n b
as

ins
 an

d/o
r 

sto
rm

wa
ter

 w
etl

an
ds

, th
at 

ar
e d

es
ign

ed
 to

 ca
ptu

re
 an

d f
ilte

r:
 i. 

85
%

 of
 av

er
ag

e a
nn

ua
l s

tor
mw

ate
r r

un
off

 O
R

ii. 
10

0%
 of

 av
er

ag
e a

nn
ua

l ru
no

ff (
tot

al 
4 p

oin
ts)

c. 
Bi

os
wa

les
 sp

ec
ify

 fla
t b

ott
om

s o
f a

t le
as

t 1
8 i

nc
he

s a
cro

ss
 an

d/o
r r

oc
k c

ob
ble

 at
 po

int
s o

f c
on

ce
ntr

ate
d f

low
d. 

Tu
rf 

is 
no

t s
pe

cif
ied

 in
 bi

os
wa

les
e. 

Di
re

ct 
ra

in 
wa

ter
 fr

om
 al

l d
ow

n s
po

uts
 to

 pl
an

ter
s, 

sw
ale

s o
r la

nd
sc

ap
ed

 ar
ea

s

1. 
 A

ss
es

s t
he

 so
il a

nd
 te

st
 d

ra
in

ag
e

a. 
Su

bm
it l

ab
or

ato
ry 

so
il a

na
lys

is 
re

su
lts

 an
d r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s f
or

 co
mp

os
t a

nd
 na

tur
al 

fer
tili

ze
rs 

 (t
ota

l 3
 po

int
s)

2. 
Re

m
ov

e a
nd

 st
or

e t
op

so
il b

ef
or

e g
ra

di
ng

Po
ss

ibl
e P

oin
ts

Po
ss

ibl
e P

oin
ts

c. 
Cr

ea
te 

or
 pr

ote
ct 

a d
ive

rse
 pl

an
t b

uff
er

 of
 lo

w 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 ve
ge

tat
ion

 al
on

g c
re

ek
s, 

sh
or

eli
ne

s o
r m

on
oc

ult
ur

ed
 

lan
ds

ca
pe

d a
re

as

Si
te 

Pl
an

nin
g S

ub
tot

al,
 ou

t o
f p

os
sib

le 
33

 po
int

s:

1. 
Mi

ni
m

ize
 im

pe
rv

io
us

 su
rfa

ce
s

a. 
Pe

rm
ea

ble
 pa

vin
g, 

gr
av

el 
or

 ot
he

r p
or

ou
s s

ur
fac

es
 ar

e i
ns

tal
led

  fo
r 

 i. 
 25

%
 O

R
ii. 

33
%

  (
tot

al 
3 p

oin
ts)

 O
R

iii.
 50

%
 of

 th
e p

av
ed

 ar
ea

 (t
ota

l 5
 po

int
s)

b. 
No

 im
pe

rvi
ou

s s
ur

fac
es

 di
re

ctl
y c

on
ne

ct 
to 

the
 st

or
m 

dr
ain

2. 
De

sig
n 

a s
ys

te
m

 to
 ca

pt
ur

e a
nd

 fi
lte

r s
to

rm
 w

at
er

a. 
Ca

ptu
re

 an
d f

ilte
r r

un
off

 fr
om

 pa
rki

ng
 lo

ts 
int

o l
an

ds
ca

pe
 be

ds
, v

eg
eta

ted
 sw

ale
s o

r o
the

r la
nd

sc
ap

e s
tor

mw
ate

r 
BM

Ps

St
or

mw
ate

r a
nd

 S
ite

 D
ra

ina
ge

 S
ub

tot
al,

 ou
t o

f p
os

sib
le 

16
 po

int
s:

a. 
Th

e r
em

ov
al,

 te
mp

or
ar

y s
tor

ag
e, 

an
d r

e-
sp

re
ad

ing
 of

 to
ps

oil
 is

 sp
ec

ifie
d i

n t
he

 la
nd

sc
ap

e d
es

ign
 do

cu
me

nts
 

AN
D 

sp
ec

ific
ati

on
s i

nc
lud

e a
 m

ax
im

um
 to

ps
oil

 pi
le 

he
igh

t o
f 6

 fe
et,

 as
 w

ell
 as

 m
ea

su
re

s t
o p

ro
tec

t th
e s

tor
ed

 
top

so
il f

ro
m 

er
os

ion

3. 
 P

ro
te

ct
 so

il f
ro

m
 co

m
pa

ct
io

n
a. 

 G
ra

din
g s

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 an

d c
on

str
uc

tio
n p

lan
s c

all
 fo

r t
he

 in
sta

lla
tio

n a
nd

 m
ain

ten
an

ce
 of

 fe
nc

ing
 to

 pr
oh

ibi
t 

pa
rki

ng
 or

 m
ate

ria
ls 

sta
gin

g i
n a

re
as

 id
en

tifi
ed

 fo
r p

ro
tec

tio
n

b. 
De

sig
n d

oc
um

en
ts 

sp
ec

ify
 th

at 
so

il i
s n

ot 
wo

rke
d w

he
n w

et
4. 

 A
er

at
e c

om
pa

ct
ed

 so
ils

 
a. 

De
sig

n d
oc

um
en

ts 
inc

lud
e s

pe
cif

ica
tio

n t
o a

lle
via

te 
co

mp
ac

ted
 so

ils
 to

 a 
de

pth
 of

 at
 le

as
t 8

 in
ch

es
, b

efo
re

 
pla

nti
ng

, fo
r a

ll l
an

ds
ca

pe
d a

re
as

 th
at 

ca
n n

ot 
be

 pr
ote

cte
d d

ur
ing

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
b. 

De
sig

n d
oc

um
en

ts 
inc

lud
e s

pe
cif

ica
tio

n t
o a

lle
via

te 
co

mp
ac

ted
 so

ils
 to

 a 
de

pth
 of

 at
 le

as
t 1

2 i
nc

he
s, 

be
for

e 
pla

nti
ng

, fo
r a

ll l
an

ds
ca

pe
d a

re
as

 th
at 

ca
n n

ot 
be

 pr
ote

cte
d d

ur
ing

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
 (t

ota
l 2

 po
int

s)

5. 
 F

ee
d 

so
ils

 n
at

ur
all

y &
 av

oi
d 

sy
nt

he
tic

 fe
rti

liz
er

s

B
ay

 F
rie

nd
ly

 S
co

re
ca

rd
C

iv
ic

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
s

20
08

 E
di

tio
n

P
ag

e 
2 

of
  8

 

Attachment 2



 Points Achieved

 Landscape Locally

 Less to Landfill

 Nurture the Soil

 Conserve Water

 Conserve Energy

 Water and Air Qualit

 Create Wildlife Habi

Co
m

m
en

ts
Cl

ar
em

on
t B

id
 S

et
 R

ev
iew

1
1

 02
92

0 O
MR

I s
pe

cif
ied

 an
d a

me
nd

me
nts

 ar
e g

oo
d-

 3.
7 o

rg
an

ic 
pla

nt 
tab

let
s g

oo
d

R
02

95
0 s

pe
cif

ies
 2"

- g
oo

d. 
 D

et
ail

s s
pe

cif
y 3

" m
ulc

h o
n 1

" c
om

po
st-

 re
vis

e. 
  0

29
20

 
2"

BF
I p

ro
ch

ip 
mu

lch
 1"

 co
mp

os
t G

oo
d. 

Cl
ar

ify
 at

 pr
ec

on
. 

R
02

92
0 3

.4 
 5C

Y 
Or

ga
nic

 C
om

po
st-

 go
od

2
1

1
02

92
0 s

pe
cif

ies
 5%

. 

1
1

02
92

0 G
oo

d

3
1

2
02

92
0 G

oo
d. 

De
tai

l s
ho

ws
 2"

 m
ulc

h+
 1"

 co
mp

os
t. C

lar
ify

 at
 pr

ec
on

. 
2

2
02

95
0 G

oo
d

0
1

1
18 0

1
0

2
No

. L
5.2

 on
str

uc
tio

n h
ea

rt 
re

dw
oo

d
0

2
bik

e r
ac

ks
, w

as
te 

re
ce

pta
cle

- n
ot 

re
cy

cle
d

1
1

sa
lva

ge
d b

ric
k a

nd
 re

dw
oo

d l
um

be
r w

all
s L

5.2
 G

oo
d

1
1

sa
lva

ge
d b

ric
k a

nd
 re

dw
oo

d l
um

be
r s

ign
ag

e L
5.2

 G
oo

d
0

2
0

1
No

2
2

02
51

9 -
 D

ec
om

po
se

d G
ra

nit
e P

av
ing

. G
oo

d. 
25

%

1
1

1
1

wa
lls

 an
d s

ma
ll c

on
cre

te 
pa

d 3
0%

 fly
as

h G
oo

d i
n 0

33
00

1
1

02
95

0-
 pr

o c
hip

 m
ulc

h
1

1
02

95
0-

 S
up

er
 H

um
us

 co
mp

os
t

R
Go

od
. 0

15
05

 - 
50

%
0

2

Po
ss

ibl
e P

oin
ts

a.N
on

-p
lan

t la
nd

sc
ap

e m
ate

ria
ls 

ar
e s

alv
ag

ed
 or

 m
ad

e f
ro

m 
re

cy
cle

d c
on

ten
t m

ate
ria

ls 
or

 F
SC

 ce
rtif

ied
 w

oo
d:

i. D
ec

kin
g (

10
0%

 of
 no

n s
tru

ctu
ra

l m
ate

ria
ls)

ii. 
Fe

nc
ing

 (1
00

%
 of

 no
n s

tru
ctu

ra
l m

ate
ria

ls)
iii.

 O
utd

oo
r f

ur
nit

ur
e s

uc
h a

s b
ike

 ra
ck

s, 
be

nc
he

s, 
tab

les
 an

d c
ha

irs
 (5

0%
 m

ini
mu

m)
iv.

 P
lan

ter
s o

r r
eta

ini
ng

 w
all

s (
10

0%
 of

 ei
the

r o
r b

oth
)

v. 
Pa

rki
ng

 st
op

s o
r li

gh
tin

g/s
ign

 po
sts

 (1
00

%
 of

 ei
the

r o
r b

oth
)

vi.
  P

lay
 st

ru
ctu

re
s o

r s
ur

fac
es

 (1
00

%
 of

 ei
the

r o
r b

oth
)

vii
. E

dg
ing

 or
 de

co
ra

tiv
e g

las
s m

ulc
h (

10
0%

 of
 ei

the
r o

r b
oth

)
b. 

A 
mi

nim
um

 25
%

 of
 re

cy
cle

d a
gg

re
ga

te 
(cr

us
he

d c
on

cre
te)

 is
 sp

ec
ifie

d f
or

 w
alk

wa
y, 

dr
ive

wa
y, 

ro
ad

wa
y b

as
e 

an
d o

the
r u

se
s

a. 
Fe

rtil
ize

rs 
or

 so
il a

me
nd

me
nt 

ma
ter

ial
s p

ro
hib

ite
d b

y O
rg

an
ic 

Ma
ter

ial
s R

es
ea

rch
 In

sti
tut

e (
OM

RI
) in

 its
 ge

ne
ric

 
ma

ter
ial

s l
ist

 ar
e n

ot 
all

ow
ed

 in
  th

e c
on

str
uc

tio
n o

f th
e p

ro
jec

t

6. 
Mu

lch a. 
Re

qu
ire

d: 
Pl

an
tin

g s
pe

cif
ica

tio
ns

 an
d p

lan
s i

nd
ica

te 
tha

t a
fte

r c
on

str
uc

tio
n, 

all
 so

il o
n s

ite
 is

 pr
ote

cte
d w

ith
 a 

mi
nim

um
 of

 3 
inc

he
s o

f m
ulc

h
7. 

Am
en

d 
th

e s
oi

l w
ith

 co
m

po
st

 b
ef

or
e p

lan
tin

g
a. 

Qu
ali

ty 
co

mp
os

t is
 sp

ec
ifie

d a
s t

he
 so

il a
me

nd
me

nt,
 at

 th
e r

ate
s i

nd
ica

ted
 by

 a 
so

il a
na

lys
is,

 to
 br

ing
 th

e s
oil

 
or

ga
nic

 m
att

er
 co

nte
nt 

to 
a m

ini
mu

m 
of:

i. R
eq

uir
ed

: 3
.5%

 by
 dr

y w
eig

ht 
OR

 1 
inc

h o
f q

ua
lity

 co
mp

os
t O

R
ii. 

 5%
 by

 dr
y w

eig
ht 

OR
 (t

ota
l 2

 po
int

s)
iii.

 S
pe

cif
y t

he
 us

e o
f c

om
po

st 
fro

m 
pr

oc
es

so
rs 

tha
t p

ar
tic

ipa
te 

in 
the

 U
S 

Co
mp

os
tin

g C
ou

nc
il's

 S
tan

da
rd

 
Te

sti
ng

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 pr

og
ra

m
8. 

Us
e I

PM
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
pr

ac
tic

es
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 p
es

t p
ro

bl
em

s 
a. 

Sh
ee

t m
ulc

h i
s s

pe
cif

ied
 fo

r w
ee

d c
on

tro
l (t

ota
l 3

 po
int

s)
b. 

Sy
nth

eti
c c

he
mi

ca
l p

re
-e

me
rg

en
ts 

ar
e p

ro
hib

ite
d

9. 
Ke

ep
 so

il &
 o

rg
an

ic 
m

at
te

r w
he

re
 it

 b
elo

ng
s

a. 
Co

mp
os

t b
er

ms
 or

 bl
an

ke
ts 

or
 so

ck
s a

re
 sp

ec
ifie

d f
or

 co
ntr

oll
ing

 er
os

ion
 (t

ota
l 2

 po
int

s)
Ea

rth
wo

rk 
an

d S
oil

 H
ea

lth
 S

ub
tot

al,
 ou

t o
f p

os
sib

le 
21

 po
int

s:

1. 
Us

e s
alv

ag
ed

 it
em

s &
 re

cy
cle

d 
co

nt
en

t m
at

er
ial

s
D.

  M
AT

ER
IA

LS c. 
 R

ep
lac

e P
or

tla
nd

 ce
me

nt 
in 

co
nc

re
te 

wi
th 

fly
as

h o
r s

lag
i. 2

0%
 

ii. 
25

%
 (t

ota
l 2

 po
int

s)
d. 

Pu
rch

as
ed

 co
mp

os
t a

nd
/or

 m
ulc

h i
s r

ec
yc

led
 fr

om
 lo

ca
l, o

rg
an

ic 
ma

ter
ial

s s
uc

h a
s p

lan
t o

r w
oo

d w
as

te 
i. 1

00
%

 of
 co

mp
os

t O
R 

10
0%

 of
 m

ulc
h

ii. 
10

0%
 of

 bo
th 

(to
tal

 2 
po

int
s)

2. 
 R

ed
uc

e a
nd

 re
cy

cle
 la

nd
sc

ap
e c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

wa
st

e
a. 

Re
qu

ire
d: 

Di
ve

rt 
50

%
 of

 la
nd

sc
ap

e c
on

str
uc

tio
n a

nd
 de

mo
liti

on
 w

as
te.

b. 
Di

ve
rt 

10
0%

 of
 as

ph
alt

 an
d c

on
cre

te 
an

d 6
5%

 of
 re

ma
ini

ng
 m

ate
ria

ls 
OR

B
ay

 F
rie

nd
ly

 S
co

re
ca

rd
C

iv
ic

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
s

20
08

 E
di

tio
n

P
ag

e 
3 

of
  8

 

Attachment 2



 Points Achieved

 Landscape Locally

 Less to Landfill

 Nurture the Soil

 Conserve Water

 Conserve Energy

 Water and Air Qualit

 Create Wildlife Habi

Co
m

m
en

ts
Cl

ar
em

on
t B

id
 S

et
 R

ev
iew

0
2

0
1

2
2

SR
I Y

es
= 

sa
nd

, c
on

c a
nd

 dg
. S

RI
 N

o=
 re

d b
ur

st 
96

%
 co

ol 
sit

e. 
 

0
2

co
mp

ac
t fl

or
es

ce
nt,

 C
D 

an
d L

ED

0
1

0
2

0
2

0
1

Up
 lig

hti
ng

 sp
ec

ifie
d a

t tr
ee

s

0
1

0
1

0
2

Ek
oP

av
er

= 
ch

ina
 , c

on
cre

te 
pa

vin
g, 

dg
 pa

vin
g=

 lo
ca

l. 7
6%

 fr
om

 ch
ina

. 

2
2

Go
od

 02
92

0

2
2

Go
od

 02
92

0

14

R
Go

od
1

1 R
Go

od

R
88

%
0

2
0

3

a. 
Sp

ec
ify

 C
ali

for
nia

 na
tiv

e, 
Me

dit
er

ra
ne

an
 or

 ot
he

r c
lim

ate
 ad

ap
ted

 pl
an

ts 
tha

t r
eq

uir
e o

cc
as

ion
al,

 lit
tle

 or
 no

 
su

mm
er

 w
ate

r f
or

:

Po
ss

ibl
e P

oin
ts

c. 
Di

ve
rt 

10
0%

 of
 as

ph
alt

 an
d c

on
cre

te 
an

d 8
0%

 of
 re

ma
ini

ng
 m

ate
ria

ls 
(to

tal
 4 

po
int

s)
d. 

Do
na

te 
un

us
ed

 m
ate

ria
ls 

 
3. 

 R
ed

uc
e t

he
 h

ea
t i

sla
nd

 ef
fe

ct
 w

ith
 co

ol
 si

te
 te

ch
ni

qu
es

a. 
at 

lea
st 

50
%

 of
 th

e p
av

ed
 si

te 
ar

ea
 in

clu
de

s c
oo

l s
ite

 te
ch

niq
ue

s
4. 

 D
es

ig
n 

lig
ht

in
g 

ca
re

fu
lly

 
a. 

Lo
w 

en
er

gy
 fix

tur
es

 ar
e s

pe
cif

ied
 fo

r a
ll s

ite
 lig

hti
ng

 
b. 

 P
ho

tov
olt

aic
 is

 sp
ec

ifie
d f

or
 si

te 
lig

hti
ng

i. a
ll p

ath
 lig

hti
ng

 is
 so

lar
 po

we
re

d
ii. 

50
%

 of
 al

l o
the

r s
ite

 lig
hti

ng
 is

 so
lar

 po
we

re
d

iii.
 10

0%
 of

 al
l o

the
r s

ite
 lig

hti
ng

 is
 so

lar
 po

we
re

d (
tot

al 
4 p

oin
ts)

c. 
 R

ed
uc

e l
igh

t p
oll

uti
on

 an
d t

re
sp

as
s: 

ex
ter

ior
 lu

mi
na

rie
s e

mi
t n

o l
igh

t a
bo

ve
 ho

riz
on

tal
 or

 ar
e D

ar
k S

ky
 ce

rtif
ied

d. 
Th

e s
ite

 an
d e

xte
rio

r b
uil

din
g l

igh
tin

g d
oe

s n
ot 

ca
st 

dir
ec

t b
ea

m 
illu

mi
na

tio
n o

nto
 ad

jac
en

t p
ro

pe
rtie

s o
r r

igh
t o

f 
wa

ys
 

5. 
Ch

oo
se

 an
d 

m
ain

ta
in

 eq
ui

pm
en

t f
or

 fu
el 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n

a. 
Sp

ec
ify

 so
lar

 po
we

re
d p

um
p(

s) 
for

 w
ate

r f
ea

tur
es

6. 
Sp

ec
ify

 lo
w 

em
bo

di
ed

 en
er

gy
 p

ro
du

ct
s

a. 
10

0%
  o

f a
ny

 st
on

e a
nd

 no
n-

co
nc

re
te 

ha
rd

sc
ap

es
 m

ate
ria

ls 
 ar

e p
ro

du
ce

d w
ith

in 
50

0 m
ile

s o
f th

e p
ro

jec
t s

ite
  

7. 
 U

se
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 p
es

t m
an

ag
em

en
t 

a. 
De

sig
n d

oc
um

en
ts 

inc
lud

e c
on

str
uc

tio
n s

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 th

at 
re

qu
ire

 in
teg

ra
ted

 pe
st 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
8. 

 U
se

 o
rg

an
ic 

pe
st

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

a. 
De

sig
n d

oc
um

en
ts 

inc
lud

e c
on

str
uc

tio
n s

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 th

at 
pr

oh
ibi

t th
e u

se
 of

 pe
sti

cid
es

 th
at 

ar
e p

ro
hib

ite
d b

y 
Or

ga
nic

 M
ate

ria
ls 

Re
se

ar
ch

 In
sti

tut
e i

n i
ts 

ge
ne

ric
 m

ate
ria

ls 
lis

t  (
tot

al 
4 p

oin
ts)

Ma
ter

ial
s S

ub
tot

al,
 ou

t o
f p

os
sib

le 
39

 po
int

s:

1. 
Se

lec
t a

pp
ro

pr
iat

e p
lan

ts
: c

ho
os

e &
 lo

ca
te

 p
lan

ts
 to

 g
ro

w 
to

 n
at

ur
al 

siz
e a

nd
 av

oi
d 

sh
ea

rin
g

E.
  P

LA
NT

IN
G

    
 a.

 R
eq

uir
ed

: N
o s

pe
cie

s w
ill 

re
qu

ire
 sh

ea
rin

g
    

 b.
 P

lan
ts 

sp
ec

ifie
d c

an
 gr

ow
 to

 m
atu

re
 si

ze
 w

ith
in 

sp
ac

e a
llo

tte
d t

he
m 

2. 
Se

lec
t a

pp
ro

pr
iat

e p
lan

ts
: d

o 
no

t p
lan

t i
nv

as
ive

 sp
ec

ies
    

 a.
 R

eq
uir

ed
: N

on
e o

f th
e s

pe
cie

s l
ist

ed
 by

 C
al-

IP
C 

as
 in

va
siv

e i
n t

he
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

isc
o B

ay
 A

re
a a

re
 in

clu
de

d 
    

 in
 th

e p
lan

tin
g p

lan
3. 

Gr
ow

 d
ro

ug
ht

 to
ler

an
t C

A 
na

tiv
e, 

Me
di

te
rra

ne
an

 o
r c

lim
at

e a
da

pt
ed

 p
lan

ts
 

i. R
eq

uir
ed

: 7
5%

 of
 al

l n
on

-tu
rf 

pla
nts

ii. 
10

0%
 of

 al
l n

on
-tu

rf 
pla

nts
b. 

 10
0%

 of
 th

e n
on

-tu
rf 

pla
nt 

pa
let

te 
ne

ed
s n

o i
rri

ga
tio

n o
nc

e e
sta

bli
sh

ed
 (t

ota
l 5

 po
int

s)
4. 

 M
in

im
ize

 th
e l

aw
n

B
ay

 F
rie

nd
ly

 S
co

re
ca

rd
C

iv
ic

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
s

20
08

 E
di

tio
n

P
ag

e 
4 

of
  8

 

Attachment 2



 Points Achieved

 Landscape Locally

 Less to Landfill

 Nurture the Soil

 Conserve Water

 Conserve Energy

 Water and Air Qualit

 Create Wildlife Habi

Co
m

m
en

ts
Cl

ar
em

on
t B

id
 S

et
 R

ev
iew

2
2

Go
od

2
2

Go
od

c. 
To

tal
 irr

iga
ted

 ar
ea

 sp
ec

ifie
d a

s t
ur

f is
 lim

ite
d t

o:
R

Go
od

2
2

Go
od

3
3

Go
od

2
2

Go
od

 sh
ee

t L
3.1

0
2

su
bm

it s
ha

de
 st

ud
y

0
2

su
bm

it s
ha

de
 st

ud
y

0
1

1
no

1
1

2
2

31
 sp

ec
ies

, 7
30

0s
f

0
1

0
1

0
2

0
2

0
2

2
2

86
%

17 0
3

N/
A

0
3

0
1

Po
ss

ibl
e P

oin
ts

a. 
Tu

rf 
is 

no
t s

pe
cif

ied
 in

 ar
ea

s l
es

s t
ha

n 8
 fe

et 
wi

de
 or

 in
 m

ed
ian

s, 
un

les
s i

rri
ga

ted
 w

ith
 su

bs
ur

fac
e o

r lo
w 

vo
lum

e 
irr

iga
tio

n
b. 

Tu
rf 

sh
all

 no
t b

e i
ns

tal
led

 on
 sl

op
es

 ex
ce

ed
ing

 10
%

 

i. R
eq

uir
ed

: A
 m

ax
im

um
 of

 25
%

, w
ith

 sp
or

ts 
or

 m
ult

ipl
e u

se
 fie

lds
 ex

em
pte

d. 
ii. 

A 
ma

xim
um

 of
 15

%
, w

ith
 sp

or
ts 

or
 m

ult
ipl

e u
se

 fie
lds

 ex
em

pte
d

iii.
 N

o t
ur

f is
 sp

ec
ifie

d (
tot

al 
5 p

oin
ts)

5. 
Im

pl
em

en
t h

yd
ro

zo
ni

ng
a. 

Gr
ou

p p
lan

ts 
by

 w
ate

r r
eq

uir
em

en
ts 

an
d s

un
 ex

po
su

re
 an

d s
ele

ct 
pla

nt 
sp

ec
ies

 th
at 

ar
e a

pp
ro

pr
iat

e f
or

 th
e 

wa
ter

 us
e w

ith
in 

ea
ch

 zo
ne

 an
d i

de
nti

fy 
hy

dr
oz

on
es

 on
 th

e i
rri

ga
tio

n p
lan

 (w
ith

 se
pa

ra
te 

irr
iga

tio
n v

alv
es

 fo
r 

dif
fer

ing
 w

ate
r n

ee
ds

, if
 irr

iga
tio

n i
s r

eq
uir

ed
)

6. 
 P

ro
vid

e s
ha

de
 to

 m
od

er
at

e b
ui

ld
in

g 
te

m
pe

ra
tu

re
s

a. 
Pr

ote
ct 

ex
ist

ing
 tr

ee
s a

nd
/or

 sp
ec

ify
 ne

w 
tre

es
 su

ch
 th

at 
50

%
 or

 m
or

e o
f w

es
t fa

cin
g g

laz
ing

 an
d w

all
s w

ill 
be

 
sh

ad
ed

 (a
t 4

 pm
 in

 S
ep

tem
be

r) 
by

 th
e t

re
es

 at
 th

eir
 m

atu
re

 si
ze

 A
ND

 tr
ee

s m
us

t b
e d

ec
idu

ou
s

7. 
Pl

an
t t

re
es

a. 
At

 le
as

t 5
0%

 of
 th

e p
av

ed
 si

te 
ar

ea
 is

 sh
ad

ed
 by

 tr
ee

s o
r o

the
r v

eg
eta

tio
n

b. 
At

 le
as

t o
ne

 tr
ee

 sp
ec

ies
 is

 a 
lar

ge
 st

atu
re

 sp
ec

ies
 (t

ota
l 2

 po
int

s)
8. 

 D
ive

rs
ify

a. 
La

nd
sc

ap
es

 le
ss

 th
an

 20
,00

0 s
qu

ar
e f

ee
t s

ha
ll h

av
e a

 m
ini

mu
m 

of:
  

i. 2
0 d

ist
inc

t s
pe

cie
s  

OR
 

ii. 
30

 di
sti

nc
t p

lan
t s

pe
cie

s (
tot

al 
3 p

oin
ts)

b. 
La

nd
sc

ap
es

 w
ith

  2
0,0

00
 to

 43
,56

0 s
qu

ar
e f

ee
t (

1 a
cre

) s
ha

ll i
nc

lud
e a

 m
ini

mu
m 

of:
  

i. 3
0 d

ist
inc

t p
lan

t s
pe

cie
s  

OR
ii. 

40
 di

sti
nc

t s
pe

cie
s  

OR
 (t

ota
l 2

 po
int

s)
iii.

 50
 di

sti
nc

t p
lan

t s
pe

cie
s (

tot
al 

4 p
oin

ts)
c. 

La
nd

sc
ap

es
 of

 gr
ea

ter
 th

an
 1 

ac
re

 sh
all

 in
clu

de
 a 

mi
nim

um
 of

 40
 di

sti
nc

t p
lan

t s
pe

cie
s A

ND
i. o

ne
 ad

dit
ion

al 
sp

ec
ies

 pe
r a

cre
 ov

er
 1 

ac
re

 O
R 

ii. 
tw

o a
dd

itio
na

l s
pe

cie
s p

er
 ac

re
 ov

er
 1 

ac
re

 (t
ota

l 4
 po

int
s)

9. 
 C

ho
os

e C
ali

fo
rn

ia 
na

tiv
es

 fi
rs

t
a. 

 C
A 

na
tiv

es
 ar

e s
pe

cif
ied

 fo
r 5

0%
 of

 no
n-

tur
f p

lan
ts

Pl
an

tin
g S

ub
tot

al,
 ou

t o
f p

os
sib

le 
36

 po
int

s:
F.

 IR
RI

GA
TI

ON
1. 

 D
es

ig
n 

fo
r o

n-
sit

e r
ain

wa
te

r c
ol

lec
tio

n,
 re

cy
cle

d 
wa

te
r a

nd
/o

r g
ra

yw
at

er
 u

se
 a.

 Ir
rig

ati
on

 sy
ste

ms
 an

d/o
r a

ll o
rn

am
en

tal
 us

es
 of

 w
ate

r (
po

nd
s, 

fou
nta

ins
, e

tc)
 ar

e p
lum

be
d f

or
 re

cy
cle

d w
ate

r 
wh

er
e i

t is
 av

ail
ab

le 
fro

m 
a m

un
ici

pa
l s

ou
rce

b. 
De

sig
n a

 sy
ste

m 
tha

t c
an

 st
or

e a
nd

 us
e r

ain
wa

ter
 an

d/o
r g

ra
yw

ate
r t

o s
ati

sfy
 a 

pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 th

e l
an

ds
ca

pe
 

irr
iga

tio
n r

eq
uir

em
en

ts:
  

i. 1
0%

  O
R

ii. 
50

%
  O

R 
 (t

ota
l 4

 po
int

s)

B
ay

 F
rie

nd
ly

 S
co

re
ca

rd
C

iv
ic

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
s

20
08

 E
di

tio
n

P
ag

e 
5 

of
  8

 

Attachment 2



 Points Achieved

 Landscape Locally

 Less to Landfill

 Nurture the Soil

 Conserve Water

 Conserve Energy

 Water and Air Qualit

 Create Wildlife Habi

Co
m

m
en

ts
Cl

ar
em

on
t B

id
 S

et
 R

ev
iew

0
1 R

Go
od

 ra
inm

as
ter

 ic
en

tra
l E

T-
 L4

.2

R
Go

od
- n

o s
pr

ink
ler

s/s
pr

ay
 he

ad
s

2
2

3
3

10
0%

 dr
ip 

irr
iga

tio
n 

0
2

N/
A

3
3

Go
od

 sh
ee

t L
4.2

2
2

Go
od

 sh
ee

t L
4.1

10

a. 
Gr

as
sc

yc
le

0
2

N/
A 

to 
cla

re
mo

nt

2
2

BP
L w

ill 
inc

lud
e. 

Ve
rb

al 
co

nfi
rm

ati
on

 4-
22

-1
1

0
3

3
3

BP
L w

ill 
inc

lud
e. 

Ve
rb

al 
co

nfi
rm

ati
on

 4-
22

-1
1

1
1

BP
L w

ill 
inc

lud
e. 

Ve
rb

al 
co

nfi
rm

ati
on

 4-
22

-1
1

0
1

BP
L w

ill 
loo

k i
nto

. 

0
1

BP
L w

ill 
loo

k i
nto

. 

0
1

BP
L w

ill 
loo

k i
nto

. 

 G
. M

AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
Po

ss
ibl

e P
oin

ts

iii.
 10

0%
 of

 dr
y s

ea
so

n l
an

ds
ca

pe
 w

ate
r r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
sa

tis
fie

d w
ith

 ha
rve

ste
d r

ain
wa

ter
 (t

ota
l 5

 po
int

s) 
2. 

 D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

in
st

all
 h

ig
h 

ef
fic

ien
cy

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s
a. 

Re
qu

ire
d: 

Sp
ec

ify
 w

ea
the

r b
as

ed
 (a

uto
ma

tic
, s

elf
 ad

jus
tin

g)
 irr

iga
tio

n c
on

tro
lle

r(s
) t

ha
t in

clu
de

s a
 m

ois
tur

e 
an

d/o
r r

ain
 se

ns
or

 sh
uto

ff
b. 

 R
eq

uir
ed

: S
pr

ink
ler

 an
d s

pr
ay

 he
ad

s a
re

 no
t s

pe
cif

ied
 fo

r a
re

as
 le

ss
 th

an
 8 

fee
t w

ide

i. 7
5%

 of
 no

n-
tur

f ir
rig

ate
d a

re
as

ii.1
00

%
 of

 no
n-

tur
f ir

rig
ate

d a
re

as
 ( 

tot
al 

5 p
oin

ts)
d. 

Fo
r a

ll t
ur

f a
re

as
: S

pe
cif

y a
nd

 in
sta

ll e
qu

ipm
en

t w
ith

 a 
pr

ec
ipi

tat
ion

 ra
te 

of 
1 i

nc
h o

r le
ss

 pe
r h

ou
r a

nd
 an

 
op

er
ati

on
al 

dis
trib

uti
on

 un
ifo

rm
ity

 of
 70

%
 or

 gr
ea

ter

c. 
Sp

ec
ify

 an
d i

ns
tal

l ir
rig

ati
on

 eq
uip

me
nt 

wi
th 

an
 op

er
ati

on
al 

dis
trib

uti
on

 un
ifo

rm
ity

 of
 80

%
 of

 gr
ea

ter
, s

uc
h a

s d
rip

 
or

 bu
bb

ler
s f

or
: 

e. 
De

sig
n a

nd
 in

sta
ll i

rri
ga

tio
n s

ys
tem

 th
at 

wi
ll b

e o
pe

ra
ted

 at
 70

%
 of

 re
fer

en
ce

 E
T 

    
  

3. 
 In

st
all

 a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

m
et

er
 fo

r l
an

ds
ca

pe
 w

at
er

 u
se

 o
r i

ns
ta

ll a
 su

bm
et

er
a. 

A 
de

dic
ate

d i
rri

ga
tio

n m
ete

r o
r s

ub
me

ter
 is

 sp
ec

ifie
d t

o t
ra

ck
 irr

iga
tio

n w
ate

r
Irr

iga
tio

n S
ub

tot
al,

 ou
t o

f p
os

sib
le 

20
 po

int
s:

1. 
Ke

ep
 p

lan
t d

eb
ris

 o
n 

sit
e

i. O
ng

oin
g m

ain
ten

an
ce

 in
clu

de
s g

ra
ss

cy
cli

ng
 (g

ra
ss

 cl
ipp

ing
s l

eft
 on

 th
e l

aw
n a

fte
r m

ow
ing

) f
or

 al
l la

wn
s 

fro
m 

Ap
ril 

thr
ou

gh
 O

cto
be

r, 
or

 lo
ng

er
. S

po
rts

 tu
rf 

ma
y b

e e
xc

lud
ed

 "i
n s

ea
so

n"
 w

he
n c

lip
pin

gs
 w

ill 
int

er
fer

e 
wi

th 
pla

y
b. 

Pr
od

uc
e m

ulc
h f

ro
m 

pla
nt 

de
br

is 
i. O

ng
oin

g m
ain

ten
an

ce
 re

qu
ire

s t
ha

t le
av

es
 an

d/o
r p

lan
t d

eb
ris

 le
ss

 th
an

 4 
inc

he
s (

inc
lud

ing
 cu

t o
r c

hip
pe

d 
wo

od
y p

ru
nin

gs
) b

e r
e-

inc
or

po
ra

ted
 in

to 
the

 m
ulc

h l
ay

er
 of

 la
nd

sc
ap

ed
 ar

ea
s a

wa
y f

ro
m 

sto
rm

 dr
ain

c. 
Pr

od
uc

e c
om

po
st 

fro
m 

pla
nt 

de
br

is 
i. O

ng
oin

g m
ain

ten
an

ce
 in

clu
de

s c
om

po
sti

ng
 pl

an
t d

eb
ris

 on
 si

te

2. 
 S

ep
ar

at
e p

lan
t d

eb
ris

 fo
r c

lea
n 

gr
ee

n 
di

sc
ou

nt
s 

a. 
On

go
ing

 m
ain

ten
an

ce
 re

qu
ire

s a
ll e

xp
or

ted
 pl

an
t d

eb
ris

 be
 se

pa
ra

ted
 fr

om
 ot

he
r r

efu
se

 an
d t

ak
en

 to
 a 

fac
ilit

y 
wh

er
e i

t w
ill 

be
 us

ed
 to

 pr
od

uc
e c

om
po

st 
or

 m
ulc

h

3. 
 P

ro
te

ct
 so

il f
ro

m
 co

m
pa

ct
io

n 
a. 

On
go

ing
 m

ain
ten

an
ce

 re
qu

ire
s t

ha
t s

oil
 is

 no
t w

or
ke

d w
he

n w
et,

 ge
ne

ra
lly

 be
tw

ee
n O

cto
be

r a
nd

 A
pr

il

4. 
 F

ee
d 

so
ils

 n
at

ur
all

y &
 av

oi
d 

sy
nt

he
tic

 fe
rti

liz
er

s
a. 

On
go

ing
 m

ain
ten

an
ce

 in
clu

de
s t

op
dr

es
sin

g t
ur

f w
ith

 fin
ely

 sc
re

en
ed

 qu
ali

ty 
co

mp
os

t a
fte

r a
er

ati
on

 1-
4 t

im
es

 pe
r  

ye
ar

 
b. 

On
go

ing
 m

ain
ten

an
ce

 us
es

 co
mp

os
t, c

om
po

st 
tea

 or
 ot

he
r n

atu
ra

lly
 oc

cu
rri

ng
, n

on
-sy

nth
eti

c f
er

tili
ze

rs 
as

 th
e 

pla
nt 

an
d s

oil
 am

en
dm

en
t fo

r a
ll l

an
ds

ca
pe

 ar
ea

s
c. 

On
go

ing
 m

ain
ten

an
ce

 pr
oh

ibi
ts 

fer
tili

ze
rs 

tha
t a

re
 pr

oh
ibi

ted
 by

 O
rg

an
ic 

Ma
ter

ial
s R

es
ea

rch
 In

sti
tut

e 
5. 

Mu
lch

 R
eg

ul
ar

ly

B
ay

 F
rie

nd
ly

 S
co

re
ca

rd
C

iv
ic

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
s

20
08

 E
di

tio
n

P
ag

e 
6 

of
  8

 

Attachment 2



 Points Achieved

 Landscape Locally

 Less to Landfill

 Nurture the Soil

 Conserve Water

 Conserve Energy

 Water and Air Qualit

 Create Wildlife Habi

Co
m

m
en

ts
Cl

ar
em

on
t B

id
 S

et
 R

ev
iew

2
1

1
BP

L w
ill 

inc
lud

e. 
Ve

rb
al 

co
nfi

rm
ati

on
 4-

22
-1

1

1
1

BP
L w

ill 
inc

lud
e. 

Ve
rb

al 
co

nfi
rm

ati
on

 4-
22

-1
1

0
2

1
1

Go
od

 in
 B

PL
 La

nd
sc

ap
ing

 M
an

ua
l 1

/27
/11

2
2

Go
od

 in
 B

PL
 La

nd
sc

ap
ing

 M
an

ua
l 1

/27
/11

2
2

BP
L w

ill 
inc

lud
e. 

Ve
rb

al 
co

nfi
rm

ati
on

 4-
22

-1
1

1
1

BP
L w

ill 
inc

lud
e. 

Ve
rb

al 
co

nfi
rm

ati
on

 4-
22

-1
1

0
2

0
2

BP
L w

ill 
loo

k i
nto

. 

15 3
3

Go
od

 se
cti

on
 01

35
21

. 

4
4

Ga
tes

 to
 su

bm
it s

ign
ag

e d
es

ign
- B

LP
 ag

re
ed

 4-
22

-1
1

7
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

BP
L w

ill 
inc

lud
e. 

Ve
rb

al 
co

nfi
rm

ati
on

 4-
22

-1
1

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

5. 
In

no
va

tio
n:

 D
es

ig
n 

yo
ur

 o
wn

 B
ay

-F
rie

nd
ly 

In
no

va
tio

n

H.
 IN

NO
VA

TI
ON

Po
ss

ibl
e P

oin
ts

a. 
 O

ng
oin

g m
ain

ten
an

ce
 re

qu
ire

s r
eg

ula
r r

ea
pp

lic
ati

on
 of

 or
ga

nic
 m

ulc
h, 

to 
a m

ini
mu

m 
de

pth
 of

 3 
inc

he
s (

tot
al 

2 
po

int
s)

6. 
 M

an
ag

e a
nd

 m
ain

ta
in

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

 so
 ev

er
y d

ro
p 

co
un

ts
a. 

On
go

ing
 m

ain
ten

an
ce

 in
clu

de
s a

 sc
he

du
le 

for
 re

ad
ing

 th
e d

ed
ica

ted
 m

ete
r o

r s
ub

me
ter

 an
d r

ep
or

tin
g w

ate
r u

se

b. 
At

 co
mp

let
ion

 of
 th

e i
ns

tal
lat

ion
, th

e c
on

tra
cto

r s
ha

ll p
ro

vid
e t

he
 pr

op
er

ty 
ow

ne
r w

ith
 1.

 pr
ec

ipi
tat

ion
 ra

te 
for

 
ea

ch
 va

lve
 zo

ne
, 2

. a
re

a c
alc

ula
tio

ns
 fo

r e
ac

h i
rri

ga
tio

n z
on

e a
nd

 th
e i

rri
ga

tio
n p

lan
s w

hic
h i

nc
lud

e t
he

 lo
ca

tio
n o

f 
irr

iga
tio

n s
up

ply
 sh

ut 
off

, 3
. in

ter
ne

t a
dd

re
ss

 fo
r w

ate
rin

g i
nd

ex
 in

for
ma

tio
n

c. 
On

go
ing

 m
ain

ten
an

ce
 in

clu
de

s r
eg

ula
r c

he
ck

ing
 of

 irr
iga

tio
n e

qu
ipm

en
t, a

nd
/or

 ch
ec

kin
g s

oil
 m

ois
tur

e c
on

ten
t 

be
for

e w
ate

rin
g A

ND
/O

R 
im

me
dia

te 
re

pla
ce

me
nt 

of 
br

ok
en

 eq
uip

me
nt 

wi
th 

eq
ua

l o
r s

up
er

ior
 m

ate
ria

ls

7. 
 U

se
 IP

M 
as

 p
ar

t o
f m

ain
te

na
nc

e p
ra

ct
ice

s
a. 

On
go

ing
 m

ain
ten

an
ce

 in
clu

de
s i

nte
gr

ate
d p

es
t m

an
ag

em
en

t s
pe

cif
ica

tio
ns

b. 
At

 le
as

t o
ne

 la
nd

sc
ap

ing
 st

aff
 m

em
be

r o
r c

on
tra

cto
r  

is 
tra

ine
d i

n t
he

 us
e o

f IP
M 

or
 is

 a 
Ba

y-F
rie

nd
ly 

Qu
ali

fie
d 

Pr
ofe

ss
ion

al

8. 
Ch

oo
se

 an
d 

m
ain

ta
in

 yo
ur

 m
at

er
ial

s, 
eq

ui
pm

en
t &

 ve
hi

cle
s c

ar
ef

ul
ly

a. 
On

go
ing

 m
ain

ten
an

ce
 re

qu
ire

s t
ha

t a
ll o

il l
ea

ks
 ar

e r
ep

air
ed

 im
me

dia
tel

y a
nd

 th
at 

re
pa

irs
 ar

e n
ot 

do
ne

 at
 th

e 
lan

ds
ca

pe
 si

te
b. 

La
nd

sc
ap

e m
ain

ten
an

ce
 eq

uip
me

nt 
us

es
 bi

o-
ba

se
d l

ub
ric

an
ts 

an
d/o

r a
lte

rn
ati

ve
 fu

els
.

9. 
Us

e o
rg

an
ic 

pe
st

 m
an

ag
em

en
t

a. 
Pr

ov
ide

 a 
de

tai
led

 B
ay

-F
rie

nd
ly 

ma
int

en
an

ce
 ta

sk
 lis

t a
nd

/or
 us

e t
he

 B
F 

Mo
de

l M
ain

ten
an

ce
 S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 as

 
an

 of
fic

ial
 re

fer
en

ce
 do

cu
me

nt 
in 

the
  la

nd
sc

ap
e m

ain
ten

an
ce

 co
ntr

ac
t a

nd
/or

 w
ith

 on
 si

te 
lan

ds
ca

pe
 st

aff
 (t

ota
l 7

 
po

int
s)

a. 
On

go
ing

 m
ain

ten
an

ce
 do

es
 no

t a
llo

w 
the

 us
e o

f  p
es

tic
ide

s t
ha

t a
re

 pr
oh

ibi
ted

 by
 O

rg
an

ic 
Ma

ter
ial

s R
es

ea
rch

 
Ins

titu
te 

in 
its

 ge
ne

ric
 m

ate
ria

ls 
lis

t 

Ma
int

en
an

ce
 S

ub
tot

al,
 ou

t o
f p

os
sib

le 
29

 po
int

s:

1. 
 B

ay
-F

rie
nd

ly 
La

nd
sc

ap
e G

ui
de

lin
es

 an
d 

Pr
in

cip
les

 ar
e d

ef
in

ed
 an

d 
re

fe
re

nc
ed

 in
 th

e c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
bi

d 
    

 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 

4. 
Em

pl
oy

 a 
ho

lis
tic

 ap
pr

oa
ch

2. 
 D

es
ig

n 
& 

in
st

all
 ed

uc
at

io
na

l s
ig

na
ge

a. 
Si

te 
an

aly
sis

 is
 su

bm
itte

d A
ND

 65
%

 of
 la

nd
sc

ap
e c

on
str

uc
tio

n w
as

te 
is 

div
er

ted
 A

ND
 pl

an
tin

g p
lan

 in
clu

de
s a

 
div

er
se

 pa
let

te 
AN

D 
50

%
 of

 no
n-

tur
f p

lan
ts 

ar
e C

ali
for

nia
 na

tiv
e s

pe
cie

s A
ND

 no
ne

 of
 th

e l
an

ds
ca

pe
 ar

ea
 is

 in
 tu

rf 
AN

D 
co

mp
os

t is
 sp

ec
ifie

d f
or

 am
en

din
g t

he
 so

il d
ur

ing
 in

sta
lla

tio
n A

ND
 na

tur
al 

fer
tili

ze
rs 

ar
e s

pe
cif

ied
 as

 th
e 

ex
clu

siv
e s

ou
rce

 of
 nu

trie
nts

 A
ND

 in
teg

ra
ted

 O
R 

or
ga

nic
 pe

st 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

is 
sp

ec
ifie

d (
tot

al 
7 p

oin
ts)

 a 
.E

nte
r d

es
cri

pti
on

 of
 in

no
va

tio
n b

elo
w,

 an
d e

nte
r u

p t
o 4

 po
int

s a
t th

e r
igh

t.  
Po

int
s w

ill 
be

 ev
alu

ate
d b

y a
 B

ay
-

Fr
ien

dly
 ra

ter
.

a. 
Pr

ov
ide

 in
str

uc
tio

na
l s

ign
s a

nd
 ot

he
r e

du
ca

tio
na

l m
ate

ria
ls 

to 
de

sc
rib

e t
he

 B
ay

-F
rie

nd
ly 

de
sig

n, 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 
an

d m
ain

ten
an

ce
 pr

ac
tic

es
3. 

Cr
ea

te
 a 

Ba
y-

Fr
ien

dl
y M

ain
te

na
nc

e t
as

k l
ist

B
ay

 F
rie

nd
ly

 S
co

re
ca

rd
C

iv
ic

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
s

20
08

 E
di

tio
n

P
ag

e 
7 

of
  8

 

Attachment 2



 Points Achieved

 Landscape Locally

 Less to Landfill

 Nurture the Soil

 Conserve Water

 Conserve Energy

 Water and Air Qualit

 Create Wildlife Habi

Co
m

m
en

ts
Cl

ar
em

on
t B

id
 S

et
 R

ev
iew

2
0

0
0

0
1

0
1

16

To
tal

 P
os

sib
le 

Po
int

s:
21

7
25

41
18

45
23

36
29

To
tal

 P
oin

ts 
Ac

hie
ve

d:
1

0
9

15
16

12
27

5
24

10

  
  
- 

T
o
ta

l 
Pr

o
je

ct
 S

co
re

 o
f 
A
t 

Le
as

t 
6
0
 P

o
in

ts
  
  
- 

R
eq

u
ir
ed

 M
ea

su
re

s:
  
  
  
  
  
-C

6
a:

 M
u
lc

h
  
  
  
  
  
-C

7
ai

: 
 A

m
en

d
 t

h
e 

so
il 

w
it
h
 c

o
m

p
o
st

 b
ef

o
re

 p
la

n
ti
n
g

  
  
  
  
  
-D

2
a:

 R
ed

u
ce

 a
n
d
 r

ec
yc

le
 l
an

d
sc

ap
e 

co
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 w

as
te

  
  
  
  
  
-E

1
a:

 N
o
 S

p
ec

ie
s 

W
ill

 R
eq

u
ir
e 

S
h
ea

ri
n
g

  
  
  
  
  
-E

2
a:

 D
o
 N

o
t 

Pl
an

t 
In

va
si

ve
 S

p
ec

ie
s

  
  
  
  
  
-E

3
a:

 G
ro

w
 D

ro
u
g
h
t 

T
o
le

ra
n
t,

 C
A
 N

at
iv

e,
 M

ed
it
er

ra
n
ea

n
 o

r 
C
lim

at
e 

A
d
ap

te
d
 P

la
n
ts

  
  
  
  
  
-E

4
c:

 M
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
La

w
n

  
  
  
  
  
-F

2
a&

b
: 

S
p
ec

if
y 

W
ea

th
er

-B
as

ed
 I

rr
ig

at
io

n
 C

o
n
tr

o
lle

rs
  
  
  
  
  
-F

2
b
: 

S
p
ra

y 
H

ea
d
s 

A
re

 N
o
t 

S
p
ec

if
ie

d
 F

o
r 

A
re

as
 L

es
s 

T
h
an

 8
 F

ee
t 

W
id

e

P
ro

je
ct

 h
as

 m
et

 a
ll 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
m

in
im

um
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

S
u

m
m

a
ryi. I

nn
ov

ati
on

 de
sc

rip
tio

n: 
 T

he
 si

te 
ha

s 8
Pl

ata
nu

s a
ce

rifo
lia

. T
he

 de
sig

ne
r e

nla
rg

ed
 th

e t
re

e w
ell

s, 
re

pla
ce

d 
ad

jac
en

t c
on

cre
te 

wi
th 

pe
rm

ea
ble

 pa
ve

rs 
an

d r
em

ov
ed

 tr
ee

s c
los

e t
o t

he
 bu

ild
ing

 to
 al

low
 th

is 
tre

e t
o d

ev
elo

p 
it

  
 

tb
l 

l
 t

t
 t

 
Inn

ov
ati

on
 S

ub
tot

al,
 ou

t o
f p

os
sib

le 
25

 po
int

s:

B
ay

 F
rie

nd
ly

 S
co

re
ca

rd
C

iv
ic

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
s

20
08

 E
di

tio
n

P
ag

e 
8 

of
  8

 

Attachment 2



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
June 8, 2011 

 
 
To: Board of Library Trustees 
 
From: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 
Subject: REVISE RECOMMENDED FY 2012 LIBRARY SERVICES TAX RATE TO CITY COUNCIL  

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution to rescind BOLT R11-039 and to recommend that the Berkeley City Council set the FY 
2012 tax rate for the Library Services Tax at $0.1655 (16.55 cents) per square foot for dwelling units and 
$0.2503 (25.03 cents) per square foot for industrial, commercial, and institutional buildings based on the 
April consumer price index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area of 2.821%.  

FISCAL IMPACT OF RECOMMENDATION 

The total revenue generated by the Library Services Tax in FY 2012 is expected to be approximately 
$14,425,555 (net of Alameda County billing and collection fees).  It is estimated that the tax will cost 
residential taxpayers no more than the following average amounts during fiscal year 2012: 

Square Feet Annual Tax 

 FY12 FY11 
1,200 $198.55 $193.08 
1,500 $248.18 $241.35 
1,900 $314.37 $305.71 
3,000 $496.37 $482.70 
3,900 $645.28 $627.51 
10,000 $1,654.56 $1,609.00 

It is estimated that the cost of the tax for a 1,500 square foot commercial establishment will increase to 
$375.47 in FY 2012 from $365.10 in FY 2011. 

BACKGROUND 

The Central Library and neighborhood branch libraries will have received almost 97% of their 2011 fiscal 
year funding through a citywide special tax (referred to as the Library Relief Act of 1980) of $0.1609 per 
square foot on all improvements to residential real property in the City of Berkeley, and $0.2434 per 
square foot on all improvements to industrial, commercial, and institutional real property.  The purpose 
of this voter-approved tax is to provide a stable revenue source to assure the provision of library 

III Consent, Item C 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
FY2011 Library Tax Rate Recommendation Page 2 

 
 

 

services at the level which permits library operations six days a week at branch libraries, seven days a 
week at the Central Library, and which permits the purchase of library materials at levels which are 
commensurate with the libraries’ hours of service, staffing, and patron needs.  

CURRENT SITUATION 

Berkeley’s Library Services Tax raises approximately $14.0 million per year and is indexed to the greater 
of either the consumer price index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area or the per capita personal 
income growth factor in California. 

At the regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees on May 11, 2011 the Board adopted resolution 
R11-039 recommending to the Berkeley City Council that the Library Services Tax rate be set at the per 
capita personal income growth factor for the state of California of 2.51%.  At that time, the consumer 
price index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area had yet to be announced and the Director of 
Library Services judged it prudent to present before the Board resolution R11-039 to ensure that the 
Library would have in place an adopted biennial budget for fiscal years 2012 and 2013 incorporating, at 
minimum, one of the two allowable indices for consolidation into the city’s budget prior to the City 
Council’s budget adoption scheduled for June 28, 2011. 

On Friday, May 13, 2011 the April consumer price index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area was 
released at 2.821%.  Because the consumer price index rate exceeds the per capita personal income 
growth factor rate by 31.1 basis points, selection of the more favorable consumer price index would 
result in an incremental revenue increase of $43,633 over that of the personal income growth factor.  
Therefore the Director of Library Services recommends that the Board of Library Trustees adopt a 
resolution that rescinds resolution R11-039 and that recommends to the City Council that it set the 
library services tax rate at the April consumer price index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area of 
2.821%.  This recommended action will result in a rate increase to $0.1655 in FY 2012 from $0.1609 in FY 
2011 on residential property and to $0.2503 in FY 2012 from $0.2434 in FY 2011 on industrial, 
commercial, and institutional property.  

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 

Adoption of the consumer price index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area would result in an 
increase to the Library Tax Fund of approximately $395,780 over FY11 projected receipts. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS 

The alternative action of adopting the per capita personal income growth factor of 2.51% would be a 
reduction of $43,633 in projected FY 2012 library tax receipts to the Library Tax Fund versus adoption of 
the April consumer price index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area of 2.821%.  This is not 
recommended due to increased cost factors for wages and materials in the FY 2012 Library budget.   

FUTURE ACTION 

The Board’s recommendation will be forwarded to the City’s Director of Finance for inclusion as a 
submittal to the City Council for action. 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 



 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO.: R11-0___ 
 

RESCIND BOLT R11-039 AND RECOMMEND THAT THE BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL SET THE FY 2012 TAX 
RATE FOR THE LIBRARY SERVICES TAX AT $0.1655 (16.55 CENTS) PER SQUARE FOOT FOR DWELLING 

UNITS AND $0.2503 (25.03 CENTS) PER SQUARE FOOT FOR INDUSTRIAL, COMMERCIAL, AND 
INSTITUTIONAL BUILDINGS BASED ON THE APRIL CONSUMER PRICE INDEX IN THE IMMEDIATE SAN 

FRANCISCO BAY AREA OF 2.821% 

 

WHEREAS, each year the City Council adopts an ordinance to establish the rate for the Library Services 
Tax, which supports the Library’s operations; and  

WHEREAS, the increase is based on the greater of either the Consumer Price Index in the immediate San 
Francisco Bay Area or the per capita Personal Income Growth factor in California; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees makes a recommendation to the City Council each year on the 
adoption of a tax rate for Library Services, with a potential increase in the Library Services Tax rate 
based on the greater of either the Consumer Price Index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area or the 
per capita Personal Income Growth factor for the state of California; and 

WHEREAS, at a regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees on May 11, 2011, having only the 
announced rate for the per capita Personal Income Growth factor for the state of California, the Board 
adopted R11-039 recommending the City Council set the Library Services Tax rate at 2.51% based on the 
per capita Personal Income Growth factor for the state of California; and 

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2011, the rate for the April Consumer Price Index in the immediate San Francisco 
Bay Area was released at 2.821%; and 

WHEREAS, the April Consumer Price Index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area at 2.821% will yield 
$43,655 in revenue above that of the per capita Personal Income Growth factor for California at 2.51%. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley to rescind 
BOLT R11-039 and to recommend that the Berkeley City Council set the FY 2012 rate for the Library 
Services Tax at $0.1655 (16.55 cents) per square foot for dwelling units and $0.2503 (25.03 cents) per 
square foot for industrial, commercial, and institutional buildings based on the April Consumer Price 
Index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area of 2.821%. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on June 8, 
2011 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  
            
    Darryl Moore, Chairperson 
 
            
    Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
    Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

Attachment 1 



 



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
June 8, 2011 

TO: Board of Library Trustees 

FROM: Dennis Dang, Administrative Services Manager 

SUBJECT: Revision to Biennial Budget FY 2012 and FY 2013 – Library Tax Fund (301) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution revising the adopted Library Tax Fund (301) biennial budget for fiscal years 2012 and 
2013 to incorporate projected revenue based on the April consumer price index in the immediate San 
Francisco Bay Area of 2.821%. 

FISCAL IMPACT OF RECOMMENDATION 

Rescission of BOLT R11-039 (recommending the City Council set the library services tax rate at the per 
capita personal income growth factor of 2.51%) and the adoption of the April consumer price index in the 
immediate San Francisco Bay Area for the library services tax rate will result in an incremental increase to 
projected FY 2012 revenue of $43,633.  The Library is not requesting any change to the adopted 
expenditures appropriation budget. 

Revenue 

 FY 2012 Variance FY 2013 Variance 

Fund CPI R11-039 f/(u) CPI R11-039 f/(u) 

Library Services Tax $14,425,555 $14,381,922 $43,633 $14,714,066 $14,597,651 $116,415 

 

CURRENT SITUATION 

At the regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees on May 11, 2011 the Board adopted resolution R11-
039 recommending to the Berkeley City Council that the library services tax be set at the per capita 
personal income growth factor for the state of California of 2.51%.  At that time, the consumer price index 
in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area had yet to be announced and the Director of Library Services 
judged it prudent to present before the Board resolution R11-039 to ensure that the Library would have in 
place an adopted biennial budget for fiscal years 2012 and 2013 incorporating, at minimum, one of the two 
allowable indices for consolidation into the city’s budget prior to the City Council’s budget adoption 
scheduled for June 28, 2011. 

On Friday, May 13, 2011 the April consumer price index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area was 
released at 2.821%.  Because the consumer price index rate exceeds the per capita personal income growth 
factor rate by 31.1 basis points, selection of the more favorable consumer price index would result in an 
incremental revenue increase of $43,633 over that of the personal income growth factor. 

III Consent Calendar, Item D



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR 
Revision to Biennial Budget FY 2012 and FY 2013 – Library Tax Fund (301) Page 2 

 
Additionally, subsequent to the release of the higher than expected April consumer price index the City has 
lifted its FY 2013 guidance rate to 2.0% from 1.5%.  This change results in an incremental gain of $116,415 
above the projected library tax revenue contained in the budget approved by R11-038. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS 

No alternative actions are proposed at this time. 

FUTURE ACTION 

Once adopted by the Library Board of Trustees the Library will report the final budget to the City Manager’s 
Office for inclusion in the comprehensive budget for the City.   

 

 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution 
2. Proposed Revenue Biennial Budget by Fund 
3. Library Tax Fund 5-Year Fund Analysis  
 



 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO.: 11-0## 

APPROVE A REVISION TO THE ADOPTED BIENNIAL REVENUE BUDGET FOR FY 2012 TO $15,917,983 AND 
FOR FY 2013 TO $16,113,440,  WITH NO CHANGES TO THE ADOPTED BIENNIAL EXPENDITURES BUDGET 

WHEREAS, at the May 11, 2011 regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees, the Board by Resolution 
No. 11-039 recommended to the Berkeley City Council that the FY 2012 library services tax be set at the per 
capita personal income growth factor for the state of California of 2.51%; and  

WHEREAS, at the May 11, 2011 regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees, the Board by Resolution 
No. 11-038 adopted the revenue and expenditures biennial budget for the Berkeley Public Library for fiscal 
years 2012 and 2013; and 

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2011, the rate for the April consumer price index in the immediate San Francisco Bay 
Area was released at 2.821%; and 

WHEREAS, on May 16, 2011, by direction of the City Manager’s Office the City of Berkeley tax revenue 
guidance rate for FY 2013 was revised upward to 2.0% from 1.5%; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Library Services judges it prudent that the Berkley Public Library Biennial Budget 
for fiscal years 2012 and 2013 incorporate revised revenue projections prior to budget adoption by the City 
Council; and 

WHEREAS, based on the April consumer price index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area FY 2012 
library tax revenue would increase incrementally $43,633; and 

WHEREAS, based on the 2.0% guidance rate provided by the City for FY 2013 library tax revenue would 
increase incrementally $116,415; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley to approve a 
revision to the adopted biennial revenue budget for FY 2012 to $15,917,983 and for FY 2013 to 
$16,113,440,  with no changes to the adopted biennial expenditures budget. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on June 8, 2011 
by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  

  _______________________________  
 Darryl Moore, Chairperson 

  _______________________________  
 Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

Attachment 1



 



BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
UB

LIC
 LI

BR
AR

Y
1-

Ju
n-

11
PR

OP
OS

ED
 R

EV
EN

UE
 B

IE
NN

IA
L B

UD
GE

T 
by

 F
UN

D 
- L

IB
RA

RY
 w

/C
oB

G:
\A

dm
in 

As
sis

tan
t\B

OL
T\

Ag
en

da
 P

ac
ke

ts\
20

11
\06

\[C
op

y o
f P

rjc
tn 

5Y
FY

 20
12

FY
 20

13
Lib

 D
sc

r
DL

/IL
L

Gr
an

ts
Pu

b L
ib

Gi
ft

Fn
dn

 F
FE

Ms
e F

F
Re

ve
nu

e
Lib

 D
sc

r
DL

/IL
L

Gr
an

ts
Pu

b L
ib

Gi
ft

Fn
dn

 F
FE

Ms
e F

F
Re

ve
nu

e
El

e/O
bj

Ac
co

un
t D

es
cri

pti
on

30
1-

12
30

2-
12

30
4-

12
30

5-
12

30
6-

12
30

7-
12

30
8-

12
FY

12
30

1-
13

30
2-

13
30

4-
13

30
5-

13
30

6-
13

30
7-

13
30

8-
13

FY
13

01
-0

1
Re

fun
d o

n B
ills

2,0
00

2,0
00

2,0
00

2,0
00

13
-1

5
Lib

ra
ry 

Ta
x

14
,42

5,5
55

14
,42

5,5
55

14
,71

4,0
66

14
,71

4,0
66

20
-0

7
Lib

ra
ry 

Sv
c&

Co
ns

tr 
Ac

t
37

,65
0

37
,65

0
37

,65
0

37
,65

0
20

-1
1

Lib
ra

ry 
Fin

es
22

3,0
00

22
3,0

00
22

3,0
00

22
3,0

00
20

-1
5

Lo
st 

Bo
ok

 F
ine

s
30

,00
0

30
,00

0
30

,00
0

30
,00

0
20

-1
7

Lib
/F

in 
Ac

t/S
.B

. 3
58

8,6
00

8,6
00

8,6
00

8,6
00

20
-2

1
To

ol 
Le

nd
ing

 F
ine

s
20

,00
0

20
,00

0
20

,00
0

20
,00

0
23

-1
2

BP
L F

ou
nd

ati
on

1,0
00

,00
0

1,0
00

,00
0

1,0
00

,00
0

1,0
00

,00
0

23
-1

3
Fr

ien
ds

 of
 B

PL
88

,55
4

88
,55

4
30

-0
1

Int
er

es
t-I

nv
es

tm
en

t P
oo

l
6,0

00
6,0

00
1,5

00
1,5

00
50

-0
2

Int
er

-L
ibr

ar
y B

oo
k L

oa
n

5,0
00

5,0
00

5,0
00

5,0
00

50
-0

3
Di

re
ct 

Bo
ok

 Lo
an

41
,12

4
41

,12
4

41
,12

4
41

,12
4

65
-0

1
Me

eti
ng

 R
oo

m 
Fe

es
2,0

00
2,0

00
2,0

00
2,0

00
99

-9
9

Mi
sc

ell
an

eo
us

 R
ev

en
ue

8,5
00

20
,00

0
28

,50
0

8,5
00

20
,00

0
28

,50
0

En
d 

UP
D

Be
rk

ele
y P

ub
lic

 L
ib

ra
ry

 w
/C

oB
14

,71
1,0

55
66

,12
4

37
,65

0
8,6

00
88

,55
4

1,0
00

,00
0

6,0
00

15
,91

7,9
83

14
,99

9,5
66

66
,12

4
37

,65
0

8,6
00

1,0
00

,00
0

1,5
00

16
,11

3,4
40

Attachment 2



 



B
E

R
K

E
L

E
Y

 P
U

B
L

IC
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 T

A
X

 F
U

N
D

 (3
01

):
 5

-Y
E

A
R

 F
U

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
SI

S
FY

 2
01

0
FY

 2
01

1
FY

 2
01

1
FY

 2
01

1
FY

 2
01

2
FY

 2
01

3
FY

 2
01

4
FI

N
AL

AD
O

PT
ED

R
EV

IS
ED

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

1,
10

2,
15

1
$ 

  
1,

46
1,

88
3

$ 
  

1,
46

1,
88

3
$ 

   
 

1,
46

1,
88

3
$ 

   
1,

11
1,

54
0

$ 
   

 
89

6,
10

2
$ 

   
   

 
74

8,
55

9
$ 

   
  

R
ev

en
ue

s
  L

ib
ra

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ta
x

13
,8

44
,4

89
$ 

 
13

,9
04

,7
89

$ 
 

13
,9

04
,7

89
$ 

   
14

,0
29

,7
75

$ 
 

14
,4

25
,5

55
$ 

   
14

,7
14

,0
66

$ 
   

14
,9

34
,7

77
$ 

 
  F

in
es

/F
ee

s
29

3,
25

4
25

2,
00

0
30

0,
00

0
30

0,
00

0
27

5,
00

0
27

5,
00

0
30

0,
00

0
  D

on
at

io
ns

/P
riv

at
e 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

  M
is

c.
 R

ev
en

ue
 / 

In
te

re
st

 / 
R

ef
un

ds
14

,5
32

10
,5

00
10

,5
00

10
,5

00
10

,5
00

10
,5

00
10

,5
00

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
E:

14
,1

52
,2

75
$ 

14
,1

67
,2

89
$ 

14
,2

15
,2

89
$ 

  
14

,3
40

,2
75

$ 
 

14
,7

11
,0

55
$ 

  
14

,9
99

,5
66

$ 
  

15
,2

45
,2

77
$ 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

  O
pe

ra
tio

ns
   

   
  S

al
ar

ie
s,

 W
ag

es
, B

en
ef

its
11

,6
45

,5
44

$ 
 

11
,6

49
,9

48
$ 

 
11

,6
49

,9
48

$ 
   

11
,6

49
,9

48
$ 

 
12

,1
65

,1
87

$ 
   

12
,4

16
,9

67
$ 

   
12

,6
25

,4
76

$ 
 

   
Sa

la
rie

s,
 W

ag
es

, B
en

ef
its

   
   

  l
es

s:
 L

ab
or

 V
ac

an
cy

 S
av

in
gs

11
6,

49
9

11
6,

49
9

11
6,

49
9

18
2,

57
8

18
6,

19
3

18
9,

38
2

   
 P

er
so

nn
el

 
11

,6
45

,5
44

$ 
 

11
,5

33
,4

49
$ 

 
11

,5
33

,4
49

$ 
   

11
,5

33
,4

49
$ 

 
11

,9
82

,6
09

$ 
   

12
,2

30
,7

74
$ 

   
12

,4
36

,0
94

$ 
 

   
 N

on
-P

er
so

nn
el

 
45

8,
70

9
59

8,
99

0
95

0,
76

3
97

5,
76

3
71

1,
73

3
64

2,
06

6
64

2,
06

6
   

 L
ib

ra
ry

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 (i

nc
l T

oo
l L

nd
ng

)
82

3,
06

8
90

0,
00

0
90

0,
00

0
90

0,
00

0
90

0,
00

0
90

0,
00

0
90

0,
00

0
   

 M
is

c.
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

19
8,

06
3

29
0,

85
0

34
6,

04
2

34
6,

04
2

28
2,

60
0

29
1,

45
0

29
1,

45
0

   
 U

til
iti

es
+T

el
ep

ho
ne

37
8,

34
6

41
2,

26
2

41
2,

26
2

41
2,

26
2

42
8,

75
0

46
1,

60
0

46
1,

60
0

   
 J

an
ito

ria
l

16
7,

42
8

18
0,

00
0

21
5,

63
1

19
0,

63
1

18
0,

00
0

18
0,

00
0

18
0,

00
0

   
 S

of
tw

ar
e 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

54
,0

45
23

4,
30

4
24

3,
25

5
24

3,
25

5
28

5,
80

4
28

5,
80

4
28

5,
80

4
   

 C
om

pu
te

r &
 S

of
tw

ar
e 

Pu
rc

ha
se

31
,0

13
55

,0
00

55
,0

00
55

,0
00

55
,0

00
55

,0
00

55
,0

00
   

 C
IP

 (B
ui

ld
in

g)
12

,5
39

75
,0

00
15

,0
00

15
,0

00
75

,0
00

75
,0

00
75

,0
00

  S
ub

to
ta

l:
13

,7
68

,7
55

$ 
14

,2
79

,8
55

$ 
14

,6
71

,4
02

$ 
  

14
,6

71
,4

02
$ 

 
14

,9
01

,4
96

$ 
  

15
,1

21
,6

94
$ 

  
15

,3
27

,0
14

$ 
  C

ha
rg

es
 F

ro
m

 O
th

er
 D

ep
ts

   
 F

in
an

ce
 - 

Bi
llin

g 
(3

60
1)

12
,6

85
$ 

   
   

  
11

,2
67

$ 
   

   
  

11
,2

67
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
91

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
,8

49
$ 

   
   

   
 

13
,1

18
$ 

   
   

   
 

13
,1

18
$ 

   
   

  
   

 F
ac

ilit
ie

s 
- A

dm
n 

(5
40

1)
 +

Tx
cs

 (5
40

3)
11

,1
03

11
,5

12
11

,5
74

11
,3

04
12

,1
48

12
,2

97
12

,2
97

   
 In

te
rfu

nd
 T

ra
ns

fe
rs

Su
bt

ot
al

:
23

,7
88

$ 
   

   
 

22
,7

79
$ 

   
   

 
22

,8
41

$ 
   

   
   

19
,2

16
$ 

   
   

  
24

,9
97

$ 
   

   
   

25
,4

15
$ 

   
   

   
25

,4
15

$ 
   

   
 

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
:

13
,7

92
,5

43
$ 

14
,3

02
,6

34
$ 

14
,6

94
,2

43
$ 

  
14

,6
90

,6
18

$ 
 

14
,9

26
,4

93
$ 

  
15

,1
47

,1
09

$ 
  

15
,3

52
,4

29
$ 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Su

rp
lu

s/
(S

ho
rt

fa
ll)

 
{R

ev
 - 

Ex
p}

35
9,

73
2

$ 
   

   
(1

35
,3

45
)

$ 
   

  
(4

78
,9

54
)

$ 
   

   
 

(3
50

,3
43

)
$ 

   
  

(2
15

,4
38

)
$ 

   
   

 
(1

47
,5

43
)

$ 
   

   
 

(1
07

,1
52

)
$ 

   
  

G
R

O
SS

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

AN
C

E 
{B

al
 +

 R
ev

 - 
Ex

p}
1,

46
1,

88
3

$ 
   

1,
32

6,
53

8
$ 

   
98

2,
92

9
$ 

   
   

  
1,

11
1,

54
0

$ 
   

89
6,

10
2

$ 
   

   
  

74
8,

55
9

$ 
   

   
  

64
1,

40
8

$ 
   

   
G

:\A
dm

in
 A

ss
is

ta
nt

\B
O

LT
\A

ge
nd

a 
P

ac
ke

ts
\2

01
1\

06
\[C

op
y 

of
 P

rjc
tn

 5
Y

R
_F

Y
10

 1
4_

19
M

A
Y

11
.x

ls
x]

R
ev

pr
in

te
d:

1-
Ju

n-
11

Attachment 3



 



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 June 8, 2011 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  
SUBJECT: JUNE 2011 MONTHLY BRANCH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT REPORT FROM LIBRARY 

DIRECTOR  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Every month the Library Director gives the Board a report on branch improvement activities and updates 
from the previous month.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 
 
SUMMARY OF WORK 
 
Meetings held during this reporting period include: 

• Weekly project meetings facilitated by the KCEM project manager, Steve Dewan or Bob Fusilier 
• Meeting with City’s Planning Department and architects as needed 
• Meetings with branch project contractors / construction meetings 

 
COMMUNICATION 
  
Staff continues to update the Library website with FAQs, announcements of meetings etc. as needed: 
http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/b-renovation.php. A display of the latest plans 
for that branch and the appropriate FAQ is posted for public review. Comments are being taken and 
suggestions received are posted. Closure guides, FAQs and bookmarks related to construction closure 
for the first two projects were finalized and made available in paper and posted on the library’s website.  
 
Construction Updates 
 
Starting in May a new heading was added to the Branch Construction page, under Claremont the public 
can now find a posting of Weekly Construction Updates - 
http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/documents/110523_BPL_Claremont_Weekly_
Construction_Update.pdf 
Similarly, the North Branch project updates on the construction phase are at: 
http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/documents/110523_BPL_North_Weekly_Cons
truction_Update.pdf 

V Information, Item A 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
June 2011 Monthly Branch Improvement Project Report from Library Director Page 2 
  

These updates give a brief overview of the upcoming two-week schedule of activities provided by 
Kitchell CEM staff and reflect their ongoing oversight of the construction phase and meetings with the 
contractor on site.  The Library has asked that a banner be posted at the North site, this was already 
done for the Claremont library, with the name of the project, funding source, officials and the URL to the 
construction updates.  
 
Staff has prepared and mailed postcards to our email lists for both North and Claremont projects with 
contact details for each project, including the name of the contractor, their contact information, name 
and number to report noise problems, Kitchell manager’s contact and library contact, in addition to the 
Library website URL for weekly construction updates. We are hopeful this will be useful to nearby 
residents that have concerns and questions during the construction phase or just what to tract the 
projects progress! 
  
 
OTHER CITY AGENCIES, BOARDS AND BODIES 
 
 City Council   
The minutes from the May 17, 2011 City Council meeting, including the hearing on the South and West 
branch libraries is available on the council website and the meeting agenda for  May 17th has been 
annotated (below) for the library items (http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/ContentDisplay.aspx?id=62944).  
 
Both library projects and the FEIR were approved unanimously by Council. 
 
West Branch Library Project (From posted Council agenda) 
 
Recommendation: Conduct public hearings and, upon conclusion, adopt a Resolution certifying the 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and approving Demolition Permit No. 10-40000015 to allow 
demolition of the existing West Branch Library, a City of Berkeley Structure of Merit, and Use Permit No. 
10-10000045 to allow construction of a new branch library. 
 
Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearings. 15 speakers.  M/S/C (Moore/Wengraf) to close 
the public hearings. 

Action: M/S/C (Moore/Anderson) to adopt Resolution No. 65,279–N.S. certifying the Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR) and approving Demolition Permit No. 10-40000015 to allow demolition of the 
existing West Branch Library, a City of Berkeley Structure of Merit, and Use Permit No. 10-10000045 to 
allow construction of a new branch library. 

Vote: Ayes – Maio, Moore Anderson, Arreguin, Capitelli, Wengraf, Worthington, Wozniak, Mayor Bates; 
Noes – None. 

South Branch Library project (From posted Council agenda) 

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a Resolution certifying the 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and approving Use Permit No. 10-10000031 to allow demolition of 
the existing South Branch Library and construction of a new branch library. 
 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
June 2011 Monthly Branch Improvement Project Report from Library Director Page 3 
  

Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 15 speakers.  M/S/C (Moore/Maio) to close the 
public hearing. 

Action: M/S/C (Anderson/Worthington) to adopt Resolution No. 65,280–N.S. certifying the 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and approving Use Permit No. 10-10000031 to allow demolition of 
the existing South Branch Library and construction of a new branch library. 

Vote: Ayes – Maio, Moore Anderson, Arreguin, Capitelli, Wengraf, Worthington, Wozniak, Mayor Bates; 
Noes – None. 

 
PROJECT UPDATES 
 
Claremont – Construction Phase 
The Claremont Branch Library has begun its temporary closure for improvements. Alternative services 
are now being offered by the BranchVan.   

Fine Line Construction has been issued a Notice to Proceed and has obtained a Building Permit from the 
City’s Planning Department Offices.  Updates on construction related activities for the project are posted 
on the library’s website as mentioned above.  

 
North- Construction Phase  
The North Branch Library has begun its temporary closure for improvements. Alternative services are 
now being offered by the BranchVan.   

BHM Construction has been issued a Notice to Proceed and has obtained a Building Permit from the 
City’s Planning Department Offices.  Updates on construction related activities for the project are posted 
on the library’s website as mentioned above.  

For more service information during the temporary closure including BranchVan and children’s 
storytime schedules see our North Branch or Claremont Branch Temporary Closure Guides. For more 
information check the library’s website http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/b-
renovation.php or call 510-981-6195. 

 

LPC 

On June 2, 2011 the Landmarks Preservation Commission has included an informational report on their 
agenda. North Branch Library Update: Project architect report on project plan modifications responsive to 
budget constraints necessary to approval of bid contract. The design team and staff will attend. 

 
Civic Art Projects 
A report on the status of the first two projects was included on the regular council meeting of May 17, 
2011 agenda: http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/uploadedFiles/2011-05-
17_Item_31_Update_on_Measure_FF_Civic_Art_Projects.pdf.   
The inclusion of civic art in the west and South projects is covered in a separate agenda report. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
None 



 



 
 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

 INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 June 8, 2011 
 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
   
SUBJECT: JUNE 2011 MONTHLY REPORT FROM LIBRARY DIRECTOR  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Every month the Library Director gives the Board a report on Library activities and updates from the 
previous month.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 
 

PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES 
 
CLA – Legislative Day 
The California Library Association (CLA) held their annual Legislative Day event in Sacramento to bring to 
legislators and their staffs an update on libraries throughout the state and answer questions about how 
they are doing. On May 18, Alan Bern, Doug Smith and Donna Corbeil joined many others from 
throughout the state to update legislators on their local libraries and hear a presentation on the state of 
libraries in California from our State Librarian, among other speakers.  
 
Coincidentally, the governor’s revised budget was released the same week giving visitors to the capital 
reason to be grateful for a reprieve and to support and encourage continued budget dialogs that are 
keeping public library funding in the state budget, though at a reduced amount. 
 
Governor Brown Releases "May Revision" of Budget and Restores $15.2 Million in Library Funding - May 
12, 2011 
Mike Dillon and Christina DiCaro, CLA Lobbyists 
Before noon on May 12th, Governor Jerry Brown released his much anticipated "May Revision" of the 
State Budget at a press conference at the State Capitol, and while he noted that the economy is on the 
mend, he cautioned that there is still a $10 billion structural deficit left to address. The annual "May 
Revision" process allows a Governor the opportunity to make any positive or declining revenue 
adjustments to his January Budget, which are based largely in part on the March and April tax receipts. 
As has been widely reported in the press, the tax receipts were, in fact, $2.8 billion higher in 2010-11 and 

IV Information, Item B



B
I
J
 

$3.5 billio
Budget re
 
Conferenc
 
The Califo
go to: htt
Registrati
 
The bi-an
Philadelph
early bird
reservatio
2011; this
 
 
PROGRAM
 
Programm
 
Cuban Da
Staff cont
the comm
dance, he
and instru
develop a
demonstr
Library.  
 
Summer R
The Child
13. Staff h
performa
entering g
merchant
entering g
 
Teen Serv
Children’s
prizes for 
complete 
acoustic g
 
 

BERKELEY PUB
INFORMATION
June 2011 Mon

on higher in 20
ecommendati

ces, Staff Dev

ornia Library A
p://www.cla-
on and accom

nual Public Li
hia.  Though t
 registration 

ons, as well as
s is the more 

MS, SERVICES 

ming Highligh

nce 
tinues to prov

munity.  The L
eld on Saturda
ucting Afro-Cu
a unique and e
ration, follow

Reading 2011
ren’s 2011 Su
have a world 
nces reflectin
grades 1-8 are
ts have donat
grades 6-8 to 

vices has an e
s Summer Rea
the top read
ten or more 

guitar! Progra

BLIC LIBRARY  
N CALENDAR R
nthly Report fr

011-12 than a
ons. Read mo

velopment and

Associations a
-csla.org/. The
mmodation re

brary Associa
this conferen
will open in J
s preconferen
critical date f

AND COLLEC

hts 

vide a variety 
ibrary welcom
ay, May 28, 2
uban Folkloric
entertaining s
ed by a dance

 
ummer Readi
of activities p

ng Asian, Latin
e welcome to
ted a variety o
serve as sum

xciting summ
ading Game. 
ers. Teens wh
book reviews

am plans inclu

REPORT 
rom Library Di

anticipated, g
ore: http://bit

d Training  

annual confe
e conference
eservations w

ation Confere
ce is not sche
uly 2011. Thi
nce and speci
for making ar

CTIONS 

of programm
med dance in
011, at 2 p.m
c Dance and C
style of teach
e lesson. This

ng Game: On
planned for ki
n American, M
o participate. 
of prizes. The

mmertime Stu

mer reading pr
Staff have ma
ho submit bo
s will have a c
ude a hands-o

irector
 

giving the Gov
t.ly/i9nUov 

rence will be 
dates are Fri

will begin in Ju

ence is schedu
eduled for alm
s will be for m
ial event regis
rangements a

ming that both
structor Robe

m. at the Cent
Cuban Popula

hing.  This free
s program is s

e World, Man
ids, including 
Middle Easter
As in previou

e Children’s D
dent Friends 

rogram this y
any prizes for
ok reviews w
chance to win
on henna wor

vernor some f

held in Pasad
iday, Novemb
une 2011. 

uled for Marc
most a year I 
main conferen
stration will b
as hotels go q

h highlights t
erto Borrell in
ral Library.  T
ar Dance has 
e program be

sponsored by 

ny Stories, wi
 an internatio
rn, and West 
us years, the F
epartment al
Volunteers. 

year, running 
r participants

will be entered
n a touch-scre
rkshop, crafts

flexibility to a

dena this yea
ber 11 throug

ch 13-17, 201
wanted to le
nce registrati
be available in
quickly.   

he collection
n a program o

Thirty-five yea
enabled Rob

egan with a le
 Friends of th

ll run from Ju
onal fashion s
African cultu

Friends of the
lso welcomes

the same dat
s, including tw
d in a raffle; t
een tablet co
s, games, and

Pa

adjust his Jan

r, for more d
gh the 13th.  

12, to be held 
t you know th
ion only. Hou
n September

s but also eng
on Cuban pop
ars of perform

berto Borrell t
ecture and 
he Berkeley P

une 17 – Augu
show and 
ures. Young pe
e Library and 
s students 

tes as the 
wo special gra
those who 
mputer or an

d other activit

age 2 

uary 

etails 

in 
he 
sing 

gages 
pular 
ming 
to 

ublic 

ust 

eople 
local 

and 

n 
ties. 



B
I
J
 

FACILITIES
 
Library Vo
 
On Thursd
year. The 
children’s
behind th
program a
and Librar
from the 
Jenifer Sh
 
Library ne
 
Currently,
originatin
reference
which did
(http://ww
posts cale
 
In explori
other City
the past t
appropria
outlets, in
and other
individual
charge, to
releases) 
links to th
News abo
 
Staff reco
Board age
archival in
staff searc
 
BOLT Upd
At the Jun
Board of L
Action is t
Holcomb 
rescinding
administr
 
 

BERKELEY PUB
INFORMATION
June 2011 Mon

S/ OPERATIO

olunteer Appr

day, May 26 t
gathering inc

s, the branche
e scenes in A
as tutors. Spe
ry Trustee Wi
Friends of the

hurson for pla

ews, press rele

, the City of B
g with the cit

es to the City o
 this but that
ww.cityofber

endar items, p

ng options th
y of Berkeley 
he library has

ate during a p
ncluding Berk
rs are availab
l basis by usin
o a California 
on  libraries s

he original sou
out California 

ommends that
enda packets,
nformation, s
ching for ann

date 
ne 7, 2011 Co
Library Truste
to adopt a rev
to the Board 
g Resolution N
ative error w

BLIC LIBRARY  
N CALENDAR R
nthly Report fr

NS & PERSON

reciation Even

the library he
cluded a repr
es and Centra

Administration
ecial guests in
inston Burton
e Library and 
nning the eve

eases and the

Berkeley webs
ty and distrib
on their webs
t was cancele
rkeley.info/Co
press releases

he library may
Commission 
s included ful

period when e
eleyside, The
le online, in s

ng the Google
State Library

statewide by 
urce to subsc
Libraries - ht

t we no longe
, but focus on
imilar to the 
ouncements,

ouncil meeting
ees Appointm
vised Resolut
of Library Tru

No. 65,258-N
ith the wrong

REPORT 
rom Library Di

NNEL 

nt 

eld a special e
esentation of

al reference w
n with copyin
ncluded Mayo
n. Refreshme
everyone enj

ent and all of

e media 

site has a pag
uted to medi
site. At one p
d in June 201

ontentDisplay
s, etc.  

y want to con
or Board that
ll text copies 
electronic wa
 Daily Planet,

some cases ex
e application f

news scan se
means of an 
ribers, to see
tp://feeds.fe

er include a p
n making the 
City of Berke
, events and o

g the previou
ment: Revised
tion correctin
ustees ("BOLT
.S., adopted 

g expiration d

irector
 

vent to thank
f the over 85 

with programs
ng and paper 
or Tom Bates,
nts and gifts 
joyed the mu

f the voluntee

ge which lists 
a outlets. The

point the City 
10 for budget 
y.aspx?id=200

sider, staff ha
t provides the
of media  art
s the exceptio
, The Daily Ca
xclusively.  Th
for media sca
ervice which p
online search

e this  go to: C
edburner.com

paper account
library’s web
ley website. T
other library n

s agenda item
 Term Dates f
g the term da
T") for a term
May 3, 2011.

date. 

k our many vo
volunteers th
s; other patro
management
, Councilperso
of appreciatio

usic of harpist
ers and staff t

both current
e city does no
did subscribe
reasons.  The

060) that peo

as found ther
e public with 
icles as part o
on not the no

alifornian, SF C
hese postings
anning.  Indiv
pulls news ar
hing tool and 
California Libr
m/CaliforniaL

ting of media
bsite a better 
This would di
news. 

ms was corre
for Jim Novos
ates for appo

m of four year
 The original 

olunteers for
hat assist us, 
ons using the 
t; and in the a
on and Truste
on were fund
t Rafael Gonz
that attended

t and archived
ot regularly tr
e to a service 
ere is a “Berk

ople can subsc

re does not a
record of me

of the BOLT p
orm. Now mo
Chronicle, the

s can be captu
viduals can als
rticles (not inc
sends them v

rary News E-C
LibraryNewsE

 or calendar m
resource for 
irectly serve o

cted:  
sel and Julie H

ointing Jim No
s beginning M
resolution in

Pa

r serving in th
helping staff 
computers; h

adult Literacy
ee Darryl Mo

ded by a grant
zalez. Thank y
d.  

d press releas
rack media 
called News 

keley News Pa
cribe to, whic

ppear to be a
edia mentions
packet, which
ost local medi
e Berkeley Pa
ured on an 
so sign up, fre
cluding press
via email with
Clips: 
E-clips 

mentions in t
library news 
our patrons a

Holcomb (PD
ovosel and Jul
May 14, 2011
cluded an 

age 3 

e last 
in 
help 
y 
ore 
t 

you to 

ses 

Scan, 
age” 
ch 

any 
s. In 
 was 
ia 
atch 

ee of 
 
h 

the 
and 

and 

F) 
lie 
, and 


	2011_06_08 Agenda BOLT v5
	2011_06_08 Public art memo v 1
	Public Art West and south v1
	2011_05_11 Minutes  v1
	2011_05_11 Minutes Attachment 1 Literacy
	2011_05_11 Minutes Attachment 2 Budget
	2011_06_08 Maintenance manual v3
	BayFriendly Scorecard for Claremont 2011_04_22
	BFL Grant App 10-11_Contact-Project Info_CLAREMONT LIBRARY
	Bay Friendly narrative for grant app
	Claremont-Bid_Scorecard-4-22-11

	2011_06_08 Revised Library Tax Rate Report v3
	2011_06_08 Biennial Budget Revised Revenue - Attachment 2
	2011_06_08 Biennial Budget Revised Revenue - Attachment 3
	2011_06_08 Biennial Budget Revised Revenue
	2011_06_08 brch bond report v2
	2011_06_08 Directors report v5



